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6 Keller is NOT PReseTly Sgauing A SENTENCE For
A conviction  otHer THen THE Copgviction) ANDER. ATTRCK.

1 TRAFFICKING CONTROIED supstAancs £ FEION =N ,Passesia,\r
COF A FiRe AR fAire THE NRTURE OF OFFENSES TNULWED
BN ConVICTION BEING  CHRNENGED.
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.'12' Kellee's AppoiNTED Cownsel DD APPEAL THE JUDaMRST 6F Gornici

iz KelleRn Doss nor Know WHAT CowRT TRE ThDament

CWRe APPEAIED TN OR ANY DETRILS OTRER TReS, THE
. NEVADR SWORENME COWRT SRowS “TUDhEMENT ArEFiRnved - 10/15/18
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(B CROUNO NINE: COMULATINE ERRCR.
EVEN IF THE CORT BELIEVESANINDIVIDUAL.
e L ERROR S NOT ENOOEE TO REVERSE A CCNYICTICN,
e THE COMOLATINE. EFFECT CF ERROIZ MAY WAPRENT
i RevERSAL. BIG BONDS. STATE, I0ILNEV. 1,2 (985) 5.

_ DECHANTVS.STIE , Lo NEV. 98, 48%95 (o)
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i WHEN PECIRING COMOUATIVE ERROR., (0OPY

L EVALDACES ! (D) \WHEATHER THE ISSOE OFEOILTIR
CLOSE () THE IANTITY. AND CHARACTER ¢ QFT&_&__
E&ED&}CQD_[ HE GRALITY OF THE CRIME CHapeeD,”
\/ALDE&ClTiNC: HERNANDEZ Vo STATE | & NBV._
813,699 (8003, HERE THE MOLTIBUE STRUCHEN.
x _EPROPS S GRAUNDS. DEMAND. REVERSE ConbIoTION
L PAZED ON KEWLERS FACTS () TUEeaAL SENTENCE.
c:@ NOT ALLOWED TO.CRESS KA RANDUER (3 N0
L EXEENCY (H) NO PRORARECATE BXISTED(B)
_EXTENDED. STOR \VIOLATION.OF NRD 121193 (&) .
- DESTROVED ORAGST EVIDENCE (P FAE
| TESTIMONY (8) [NAFFECTIVE. ASSISTANCE. CF
a:mar—l TTS CLEARTHE AMOUNT OF _
e COMULATIVE ERROR (D EXTREME AND DEMIED

I KELLER THE ARILITY. TO OBTANAFABTRIAL.
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ALL CROUNDS ARE RASEDCNTHE ST (g W™

AMENDMENTS OF THE (1.8 CONSTITOTION.
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CROUND ONE® TPV EGAL SENTENCE |
KELER WA SENTENCED TOA [O-LIFE FrR

DRUE TRAEEIC.LNG WITH A CONSECUTINE [O-LIEE__

FCR A HABITUAL CRIMINAL ENWANCEMENT, WHICH

KAS CHARCED AS A SEPRATE COUNT OF THE

SNDLCTMENT

CEXHIRT L) (7 AMts LISBY va STATE OF NEVADA

1L 89 NEVIER,MH Pad 539, 1Q(de NEY, L EXNS IR 08T

THE Coues FOOND THE TRIALCOORY ERREDIN

| MEOSING A QO-MO YEAR SENTENCE FOR OALES

AND A 10-19 YEAR CONCHRRENT HABITOA CRIMINAL

ENHANCEMENT, THE. COORT BELDTHAT THE PURRSE

OF THE. HARITOAL CRIMINAL ACT WAS NATTO.

CHARCE AND SECERATE SOBSTANTINE CRIME, 5T

TO RE AN AVERMENT OF EACT THATCOMD AFFECT
THE PONISHMENT. CONSEQUENTLY THERE COLD

ONLY_RE ONE SENTENCE. THERE F0R THE CONGEC -

- UTIJE. SENTENCE RESENDED AS 1S ONIEORMLY

HELQ&I&I&@W&QL&H_&_QG
(1932) PECSLE vs DONLOR, (08 CAL,APPSH 314,994

P a1 (as) § \.A/_lLLlAM%_VS_aMII&,&&WASH&d 3

171 294 197 (1ax)

ONRER THE CONSTITUTIONS (J% AMENDMENT
RIGHT To ASLURY TRIAL AND THE DUE PROCES CLAUSE

[REQUIRES THAT ANY FACT THAT [INCREASES STATE lere

OVER &
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REYOND PREACRIBED STATUTCRY MAYIMOUM SHOND
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A REASONARLE. DOUBT, HABTTUA ~APPEND va NEW
JEPaEY 530 (50,180 BT AZHA (N2 1EDIA N3

OO0 1S, LEXS HRON A \WAS NOT ALLOWED IN KEWELS

CASE , THIS WOULD OF ALZD GAVE KEILWER THE

CHAN(P 10 ARGOE., [HS FIPST TWO CONVICTIONS

SUNLD OF FIT ONDER CRIME SPPEE LAWS, BECASE

THEY ROTH AROSE QUT OF THE SAME STTUATION,

\WEENTWA OR MOPE CONVICTIONS ARISE T OFA
SINGLE ACT, TRANSGRETION COMVICTICNS SHOULD BE.

| COONTED ASONE CONVICTION,, RESIN v NEVARS ISNEV.

N(al,5%0,PAd 984 (19%9) NE. LEXIS®.I0 NaIOAOR,

CRAY va STATE 194 NEV 10 (eoed)

THE STATE. DIONCT RAVE TR WIS TION 1O

CLASE KELLER AS A HAR |U.&<LCE2 MINAY PER NRS |73 -

CQry, AT NO PONT DI THE STATE EiLE AN AMENDED

INFORMATION CONTAINING. A CHAPG-F@F I—\A@\TO&

CRINMINAL \C’QU’T(’HFQ VeSS IUDI0 | AL DISTRICT 3

NEY. 12806 ( A5 SHOWS TUAT STATE MUET OSE THE

CRIGINAILLNFCRMATION UAED AT THE TIME CF EENTENCINE

TO RESENTAN ICL.,
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GROMND T - NOT ANOWED T QUESTION K9

_AROUT DOGS REVIARILITY A DEFENDANT. MUST BE,
| AFTCORDED THE OPPORTONITY. TO CHALLENGE THE

EVIDENCE OF A DOGS RELIARWLITY AND CREED EXAMIN -

THE DOG HANDLER AND INTRONXE HIS oW FACTS AND_.

EXPERT WITTNESPES, FLORIDA Vs HARRISHIR e 337,133 5t~

QRO IBS VED AL Lof, (8012) LEXIS NG\ LED DIGEST®

EVIDENCE 8320 TRIAL S TRIA_5\Q, KELLFR NEVER

RECIEVED THAT OPPORTHINITY, T3S 1S AN OBNIQUS

MISTAKE. THAT SHOOLD ALLOW FOR OVERTUSN OF

SPPRESSION,

N KELL ERS CASE THERE WAS NO TESTEMONY.

COF A DOG HANDLER ; NO RECORD.OE K HISICRY OR

REIIABILATY AND ORVIOSLY MO CHANCETOCROSS

EXAMINE AWHEN COVERNMENT FALSTO TORN

| OVER FULL_ COMPLIMENT CF D06 HISTRY , ERRCR.

1S, NOL_HACMLESS | UsSe Ve, THOMAS T8 F. 34 1080,

1 8013, (12 BPP_LEXIS [(NI1F 1N THE STATE OF CRECON.

Ve HELZER 350 ORE, 153,453 P 3d ges(aoi) Cee.

LLEEXIS 238 THE STATE AT LEAST ESTARMSHED THAT
DO AND OFEICER \WERE CERTIFIED BUT EVEN THATL

WAS NOT_ENCUSH REBOLRED &Y THE HTHAMENOMENT.

TO PE AUEEICIENTLY RELIARLE 1O PROVE PROBABLE

| CAOSE. <5€aj§ﬂ_guém%mﬁcx cel NonTor AT Ay G

__*_V_Lc_)i;é_egczmo THREE ©: NO EYXIGENCY

NEVADA LAW B DS THAT EVEN IF THERE WA, .
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ARDMDANT PROBARLE CALRE THE SEARPCH IN KELL ERX

CASE

VIOY AED e FORTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS .

NEVADA t AW HOLDS THERE MIRT ALSD 2E ASEPERA

e

FINDWNGOF EXIGENCY, \alH\CQH PREAUITES THEE BOUCE

<

ETAINING

A WARRENT. PRICE_ T SEAROVING. (N KELY D%, CASE. TREY

PRSI

HAD AMPLE TIME, TO ORTAIN A WARDENT.! Becavse Haw
SEAPCEUNG TREY ARPLIED FOR ONE, KELLER CONTENDS

< AETER.
THAY AT

THE YERY LEAST, AN\/"H{N@ F(‘LJND PeicR. TO ORTAINING

WARRANT

SHOAD RE. EXCLUDED \HICE WOOLD NOT envz:,me MASLS

SRATE

_ENOOEH TO [SS0OE. A SEARCH INAREANT.

RASED ONTHE FACT THERE \WASNT ANY TESTIMONY

- A DO

—

\

WT ORYENIEE OR ANY RECORD THAT ESTARIVSHED 1

RELARNITY OF THE K9.

PN KELLERS CARE PRIoR. CAG

st
Lo

) Aw/

SUOWS THAT 1T CANNAT R ADDED INTO EVIDENCE AT A

(1 ER

i

DATE_FCR_A, SUPPRESSICN HEARING.

APPEAL AND ERRCR 8 EVIDENCE. (B ONGINSTTUTICONA

_ SEARCH

A JUNEEMENT OF COMVICTION MIST (26, REMERSED W

ERE

EVIDENCE_OBTAINED IN THE ConRpeE OF AN IMCONST TS

ONAS

SEARPCH WAS ADMITIED AT THE ACCOSED TRIAL , LBVsBLgAD&iAw_

T G0 BE

OO EOd 1O, 0.5, APE LEXIS IR, THE Couet HELD THA

CTWO OF THE AGENTS_COULD OF GLARDED THE RO SMET

ING CF

T NI THOLT

MCONSHINE, WHISKRY \WHILE ANCTHER CRTAINED A WARREN
A SIGNIFICANT LOSS OF EVIDENCE . THE SEARCH AND EE

ZUPE

SR

THE, DEFENDANTS N AMENDMENT RIGHTS SETHE O, CONS

CESTION,

_AND THE EINDINGS SHOOLD HAYE BFEN SOPPRESSED

AS IS

TRUE 1IN THE KELLER CASE.

. PARRICS-LOMEL VS NY, 1B NEV qa& Qe 284 191 g

a7 ) SHonl




ﬂXEEMLﬂXzB_EBQBQ&E_QD\USE_EX [STED TO uUPD(\RT

A SEARCH WARRENT,NO EMERGENCY EXISTED®

 JUSTIEY A WARRENTLESS SEARCH, BECARE KEILERS (AR

\WWAS IRONED IN BY THE ROLCECAR, WITH KELLER N
| COEPS INTHE BACK OF IT.

THE ONE HeDR_STATUTORY PERICD OF NEVADA

L REV STAT S 171193 (1) SHOULD OF PROVIDED POLICE

 OFFCRTONITY IO PROCURE. A TELEPHONIC, WARRENT.

PRIOE T ANY. SEARCH.(NOT. AETER) |
FOOTHERMOPE THIE SEARCHINCIDENT TO ARREST

IS LIMITED AND RERINES FROM THE NEEDTODIEARN,
LAND PREVENT THE DISTRIXTICN CF ENVDENCE  WHICH

COLLD NOT_HAVE. REEN RessRUE WITH. RELERS QAR

@GORED INL, KELL FR WAS | MME DIATLY BOT TN BANDCURES,

LAND PLACED INTHE. [2ACK 8EAT OF AR CAR. KEI ER. il

IDID BAVE A LEGITIMATE, BEXPECTATION OF PRIVACY, BEING.
(O ERIVATE. STV N WHICH HEPAaD AN HOA. FEE

LAND \WAS PARKED DIRECTIY INFRENT Of ATOWNHOUEE,

WHICH KEWER OWNED.
GMML_E_%%T@

)

NERWIBNESS ALONE DOES NAOT SUST\EY PRORARLE

HCADRE, US. vs SPINNER NZ5 F 84 35, DM US APP BC

A (00D US APP LEXIS SIS IN KRV ERS CASE

TITIONER CONTENES BE DIONT FEEL HEWAS NERNOLS

L NOR KMEW HE HADANYTHING TO RS NERVCUS AROT . KELLERHAD

2EEN PULLED OVER BEVERAL TIMES IN.THE. D/BJ\’LTE:LPBJ&&HEL_

51@3—:&25 HE GO THETALLIGAET
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CRAYEN TALLLICET ANDANSTHER TIME FOR AN URSAFE LANE

CHANGE TICKET AND NEVER LAD ANY PROBLEMB WITH THEE

COFFICERS.

ﬂﬂﬁ%WNW@WMMF&Bﬁ%&M&@%@

(153 (18R COLOT CAR A3 DEFENDANTS CAR WHS STCREED.

AND T WAS RELEVED TO CENTAIN TG ALENS . AN

KELERS CASE ﬁ@%mms% T CONTAINED

MARETUARNA CP IMARITUANA_DARAPHENAL A IN WINNINGEAM

MWPAv@gﬁﬁ&&ﬁmeQLQM£g@$@mmaﬂﬁim

DE R QIAED A DO SNIFE THE ConeT REIDTRE SPRESSICN OF

EVIDENCE FEOND RAS ORUPERYY SOERESED [QECARE.

CEASONARLE. SLERICICN WAS EXNAUERTED FOUOWINGTHE

VicDAL SEAEeH, (WHICR [N KELLECS CASE. TOK NEARIC AN mrz

OF SEARCHING FRiOP I THE KG & SNIEE ) AND KELLER NEVER.

CAE CONSENT T ANY SFARCH OR 1006 SNIFE

I\ NEVADA v STEPHEN, GREENWALD ICRNY SR P2

(1002 NEV. THERE. ARE, SIMULARITIES TO KB ERS CAEC

RBEeCALRE THE TEFENTANT WAR PO LED CNER BRY AN

CEEICER. AND ATWISED HE WA REINGARESTED FOI2

WEOECKILESS D¥\iNG, THE. CRFICER WANDCUFEED AND

SEARCHED HIM CeFoRs LOCRIMNG HIMIN THE EDICE. CAR.

SAVE AS THE CREICER DID W ITH KELFR ( EXCEDT IKBLER

WAS SOMEHOW SUECEEDLY A FLIGHT RISK PAREDWITY

e, CAR BWED | N BY THE OFICER, UTmesges®

10
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1IN FRONT OF A HOME OWNED BY KELVER (WHICH =

\WAS CILICKLY ESTABSHED. ) THEN THE. CEELCER BID

AN UNWARRENTED SEARCH OF KEMWLERS CAR .

THE COURT IIN_GREENWALD ESTARLISHED TS

WAS A COISE AND RUSE, THAT VIOLATED B0TH HIR

0D CONSTUTIONAL NTMAMENDMENT AND NEY CONST

ART | 818, KEL) ER GONTENDS THE SAME. IN BIS CASE.

KELLER JTUST BADTHE BROKEN TAI L\GHT REPLACED.

(WeR CAN RE.SEE IN EVIDENCE Do (EXIRITEDT

2 LOCKRING AT THE GOOFLE MAR AT THE PREUMINAR

HEARING [T _DOESNT EVEN APPEAR, (THE TOTAL.

DISTANCE, \WAS AS LONG AS AFCCTRAL_FIEIDY)

RETWEEN WHERE THE CFFICER_CIMMED KEUER

TORNED ONTO. LAMEB , GOT ANTS THE TURNING | ANE

TR EATORNER INTA HIS HOUSING COMPLEX, THAT

| EXCLUDES. TRAVELING 200 FEET IN ATURNING LANE
LT WoouD NCTIRE ROSSIR E TO GO FROM STCRRED,

TO TURN, THEN GO ONER HH MPH SPEED LIMIT ON LAMS

RERE. HAVING T S 0w TO TURN AGAIN. (AN

TRE SEAN OF ABYITERS FEET D IN 005 VS SOWERS,
(A0, F3d. 503 (S0IQ). HS APRLEXIS 12855 |

SOPPRESAION IAAS \WARRENTED ANDTRECKSE

OVER THRNED WHERE. THE CEFICER ESTIMATED .

SPEED 10 CLAIM _PROBARLE. CALEE.. o

1S s, VASEY. 5332 £ T30 (1987) 1S, SHOWS How.

TUE DMWARRENTED &cARCH OF KEJLERSVEHIGLE

VIOLATES. HIR HT*AMEN D MENT RIGHTS, AS ISTRUE

ENIE2 =
11
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AN ROTH CARES, THE SEARCH OF THE VERHCLE [INCIDENT

fTo

ARREST WAS NOT LIMITED TO THE DEFENDANTS AREA

O

IMMEDIATE ConTroL., (IN KELLERS CASE. CEE(CERS)

(CV‘BH #C

TESTIFIED TREY HADTO OCEN THE PASSANGER DR,

TO MAKE

(T M%%\RLEJQBEAQ&A&MEL CNTHE VERNCLE. WHI

TREY

LIAD TO REMOVE. TOACCESR PRERORTED RAC OF NAQCCmQED

THE EXTENDED LENGTH OF ARREST ALLOWING FOR

A

aniEr (S8 MINUTES Y AND THE SEARCH WASBANT RAED OPON

_EVIDENCE. SIEZED SHOOLD IBE INVALID . CHIMEL Na CALIF

275 18 759,83 LED ad. (85,885 cr 2034

/EK]BIT#BH

ITi8 PRC)\H:N THERE 13 KO PRARARLE, CALSE IN

<=

CASE. , RECAUSE ENIDENCE PLOTICSEDESTROYED AND & iy

CAMERA ECI’WP@«E: SO THERE WAS NA "MAB It AN

CEOMBS

o RESINOE 7 (NOTRING IN THEVERICLE TO CREATE. §

MOKE.)

NEXT THEQE WASNT ANY _EXICENT CIRCUMSTAN

55, WITH

_MR_H&NDCDEEED_.JD{LS?QAQMM RY THE RNUICE CARS.

THEN PUT IN.THE BACK SEAT OFTRE. QP CAR SO IN
KELLERS CASE. THERE WWAS NO RLAIN VIEW EXCEPTI

ﬁEQ&DﬁE.&IHEABQd.EMENﬂWﬁAﬁEﬁAMEE@H&D

_HAVE_REEN NO SEARCH [INCIDENT QO ARREST LY
_DsBo AND_ OT:["!CEB CLAIMED KELLER WAS NGT UL

_ARREST. Tfogmw TRAFFIC VICLATIONS, ROT 1

_DRUCS THAT WERE FOUN DLSHGJRSAMDQIMLNUIE%L
SEAILY

AFTER. THE ARREST., WHICH SHOWD KFILER \WAS |

_ DETAINED, \WHICH (8 AN DNREASONABLE. S&ITORE,
19 A VAT ION OF KELLERS NTH &THy, |H™ CoNSTITUR L

l VY

RIGHTS. A,L@Q_.__D_t;_NLED.__D.QE_ERQQE%%_BEC&%E

12
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A= WASNT ANY. AUTOMOR ] E EXCEETION APPLICARLE.

IN NEVAS JACOR HaNIacH 113 NEY. &I, Q31 pdd,

1220, (995 NEV. THERE ARE TIAO ARGUMIENTS THAY

Q&NM&&ERWL

CEITHER \WHHI CH AWALD 5 VIOLAT IONS (NDER. -

CORTIARE. FROTECTION HIS NTHAMENDMENT RICHT,

[BECAUSE. EITHER THE VERIQ E INKEN ERD CASE,

WAS ONDER THE, CORT 1L AGE OF THE HOOSE. AND

TUEDE SHOOLD HAVE REEN AWARRENT PRIOR TO TiE
SEARCH INSTEADOE AFTER THE SEARCH WH (CH HAFPENED

IN KELLERS CASE. ST [HNE.CAR WASNT DINDER TRE

CLRTILACE OF THE HOOSE AND The PICGY [2ACK

WARRENT, SHOOLR NOT BANE, [REEN EXTENDED YO

THE MOCEE.
| LN KELLERS CASE THE ENVIOENCE CLEARLY SHOWS

(DbDrTng) THE CAR DIRECTLY 18 FEET FROM THE

ERONT_DCOR OF THE Townl HOOTE, OWNED Y

KELLER OM PRU/RTE PROPERTY OF A COMPLEX

WHERE BE CAYS A HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATICN.

(EXHIBIT*DEVIDENCE PHOTE CLEARNY Show

TUF CAR PARKED \WITH THE KEYS ALR EAQY.

1IN THE  TRUNK. &F THE CAR. BY THE TIME OOFS

CONFRONTED KEVMLER,

THE DAAN KELL ERS CASE Al 80 ARHIEDTHT

KEL) ER WAS TRYING TO GET NI THE HOSE , AS AN

ARAHOMENT FORAWHY THE, P16GY BACK \/\[AIZEF'I\L‘T

BHOLD BE ALOWED . (exeivs¥)

OVERY
13
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IN

KE: LL\-‘RQ, CASE 1T \WAD PROMEN THERE WAS I\\E:

VIARITIUANA SMORE CR MARISOANA, IBY THE FACT THAT. |

WAS FeonD IN THE CAR (NOR WA ANY PARAPHE NALIA OF

THING ELAE. T CREATE. THE SMELD WAS IN ANY OF THE

PHSIOS ORI ENTORY, GAIHICH SHOW

NKOTH
THE QN CEEICER ONTHE 6ENE ( HENRYE’#M';I%Q ¢

ESTIELED THAT HE DIDNT SE£ ANY AND HE WAS ONTH

v COURPLE. MINUTER ARTER | OBEZS F1RST m&g_\&uﬂ)ﬁa@

THERE (S NOIAAY THAT | E MARITANA WAS SMOKED N

N KEHERS

AP ORIOR TO THE LAST TERAVEL ETHAT THE SMELL WO

D HAVE

) INGERED LONG EAYGH FOR THE. FIRST OFFICER TO HAVE.

>

SMELLED 1T STRONGLY.ARD COOLD MAGICALLY. DISIPAT

o

LN

TRE NEXT <@ MINOTES \WHEN THE SECOND QEFICER A

INVED.

NACIN

(KELER CONTENDS NO-CNE HAS "\/&:R WOKL:D MAR KT
S CAR) '

FACT 18 175 AM OB\HOUS LG ON CFF IQE,R LCPE?_‘-"

MARK ROBEET HOWE. VS NEVADA 18 nev L5 Qe PId

_ . , |
( (9Q(a) SOCCESRFOLL Y ARGOES ONDER VG ATION CF Tk

AMENDMENT, AS DNER WKELEFR , BECAURE APRETIATE. (&

HELD THE ORCR OF MARISUANA 1S INSOFEICENT

CLROOMSTANCES TC, ATTHORIZE A SEARCH W LTHOUTE Ada

AND TEAT EVIDENCE. SEIZED SHAOUD RE 8UPPRESSED,

ORCUSLY 1N KELLERS COASE \WITH (IS QAP BrwED )
COFEED IN THE BACK OF THE FOLICE.C ¢

EXIGENCY,

LIKE BEVIDEACE REING DESTROYED, SOAT THF

| EAXT AN\/TH[ N SURPECT OR OF ANY EVIDENCE: VALLE,

SUPPCEEDLY. FOOMND ON KEL ER OR INTHE \VERICLE, REFCRE

14



INARRANT, SHNID (E SOPRESSED UNIER THE WMAMENOMENT
T ECAL SEARG AND SERUDE CLALRE

KE) ] ER NBVER CGAVE OFEICERS PERMISHICN TOED
THROOAH {5 WAL ETT ZITHER KENER OntY CEGUESTER D)
QOEATD) (S ( AMNEDR. O\I(E:’. HE FEIT HE WA REING
HARRASED IBELAEE O THE [MMEDIATE, PAT NN,
NON ROOTINEQDESTTIONING MANITUH [N AND TRE R MMACING

TEHC B KEILERD R’)QIZL’TS AND MLLLEYT /J[TH THE :{,Perw&\l
CF AN THING DRFD T ¢ |

CIBTAINED W abl '
EVIDENCE. %oppcss@ow FODJND A@ A %?UT &mm o
SUPRESSED.

KE B CONTENDS ThAY THE CRFICERS CLAIM OF
[ZORMT MARISOANA DID NOT GVE HORAENE CARE ™
SEARCH YO THE TOINT OF REEAVING OFF WS AR N U
va NENSEN 9.E3d IH8T (1laq) U3 AFP LEXIR 30F3 ANDUS
VS ANALO 08 F 23 GO0, NO FROBAE F CABE BXETED EVEN TO
SEARCH THE TRONK MHERE R ICE SME) L ED BURNT NARC-
~CT10%. NARCATICS WERPE CLAIMED TO RE. FAOND RiGHT
AROUT E25-58 IMINUTES B0T WASNT EXECUTED UNTIL ()6
(EXiBWﬁg} /A IMosT 3 hov\%w

KELLER. ALSC) SHONS CERICERS, DID N HAVE A
REASONARIE USRI \ON 10 EERFCRML A BAT DOWN

N

scioir #T)

PE@N ok ('5@:1(’5@@ CI AN RFIJP\Q WOLE RACCIE. CLOTHING-

!FITTZNCL A““)“THF A&fzﬁ QWC)C\HCJ\AR AI\IDTHF C)FF (LEE

oveR
15



J

WOOLD NOT HAVE CONE INL KELLERS BECRET AND FAUND MONEY

HE DSFD AS EpOTIAL FENDATION FIRT THE [SSOEANCE mfmF

EVENTOAL SEARCH WARRANT. [ IHE AADNGT CONE Tt

PAT O ON KENY ER WHICH KFLLER NVER CAVE THE

CFEICER OERMISHION TC)(’:@ T RS RCRET MRETRIGYE

| IS LoD, KEL ER2 TUST SIATED ORSSCT FELTWAS HEWN) £

(ANDYE% S LD INAS IN T D3 va & H\IN \aa F%ﬁ Icm
(IooE> 1S, APP LEXIS SORER EVEN THeeei

DABARLE, CAFE R THE ARRES kEJ,LEE% 4TH

AMENDMENT RIGHTS WWERE VI ATED RI: PARE THECTRIGSR

FALED TO ORTA N AWARRANT PRICETC, THE SPARCH HoYa

WATEON A3 e X Mo L ED é?o‘? Fa, Qs 0T 850

(B

RN FIVE S EXTENDED STOR I Ao oF Ne& 171,123 D

1S THER THESCENARIO ATERTARLE.  WHERETHE Wk HaUR

MAY ALLCWED DETAINMEAT TIME, (S ( ﬁfﬂ AATHOY ST AN

~ropesST 2 KEILER ASPERTS THERE WASNG ppcmm ECAS

0 SUSTLRY ARANDINING CPR106ES, (LAIMED TRAFTAC, STOP

AND CREATE. A NEW ‘%& [ R DECATE THERE \WAS NO

SMELL CF MAP JL;A;N&CQ MAR CTOANA TFESIDOE. V[ DENCE

PHOTCS SN FHERE 1S NO (CFFICER CLAIMED D ERASER S4ZEL)

MARLTUANA CRUMES AND BVIDENCE O OF KelleR S

Oepeon) | SHOWS THERE 15 NoTHING TO CRERTE A

MARITUANR SMEll OB SMOKE Try Fhe VENdE. ...,

L — W»&G;Rﬁ%,.c@r_ﬁjﬂu

16



(30F %53

I KB ER wias DETA) NED AT OS85 AND IS VEKIOLE WAS

SEARCHED UNTIC  ANWARRANT \WAS APPLIED FOR Ay

ORI, THREE Moz AND 31 MINUTES VATER.(MIND
~NOW) KEVLER HAD AQKER TG REEAK TQA\ BWYEE..

| MOMENTS INTO THE ENCaONTER) - L

(NS Ve STEPHEN  DIGIOVANNY GFD F.23d AR

20D 5 ARPP 1L EXIS 1508 (0 THE CASE Scnaa Yy
In KELLERS caer THERE \§ A U™ AMENDMENT

AOLATION ! THE OFF(CER FAILED T DL GERTLY
PERHOE THE PHRPOSE OF THE TRAEFELC. SO AND

EMBARKED ON A SCSTTANED COURAE, OF

INVESTLGATION INTO THE PRESENCE: OF TIDUCS

1AL THE CAR. N\A/HICH CONSTATORED THE, RUUWCE

THE ENCOUNTER |[RETWEEN TiE OFE LCER THE

DFFFMDANT AND THE DELAY WAS DEEFINATLY

\OT DE MalivILS .

IN KELVLERS CASE THE OF\FK‘EQ NENER

ATTEMPRPTED TWE PRASECUTION COF THE CLAlnNED

xigir*)

“TRAFE I s’ IN ODOUGLE 1S AW NOMING SIXY

WY 82 17 P2d Hal, (acme) \AM) LEYIS q7 THE

DLFtN DANT WWAD \DFTA\

TO PERSSTANT GUEST 10N INGYARATD NG K9 %,
Si\I\F_T“,\AIlTHwT EMER ATTEMPTING TOISDVE

A TICKET AR 18 INKELL ERS CARE. USNVaRIAIR

A E34 N0 (accs) OFFICER DD NOT HAVE.

REAZCM AR, DODPICION, LKE IN KEWLFRS

CASE., { RECALRE. THERE WAA NG MARWYLANA SMELL

L ONEDR <P
17



(L og

Like INUNEVADA va BECKMAN 190 NEV HR) | 305

o119 (29013) NEV LEXIS (O AS \KELL AR L BWISVS &

(Ao CED APP 203 (2010 LS APP LEXIS 10247 DA

COMMONWEALTH (0ike)HSY SW.2d 988,

Ko e WAS COREED RIGHT AWAY T OEEIC

HE \WAS NOT DINDER ARREST TOR TRAEFIC VIOLATY

R, THE MNARCOTICS WHICH THES DIDNT FIND (3

2 A0S AND B) MINOTES LATER, THIS IS DEFH

NGT A D MINIMOS TR ARY - AND 15 AN 1L EGAL
SEVZORE VAl ATION OF NBS 171193 ) ~

N U5 Ve DoeTer 193 £.34 193,199 0D APP (€]

2200 AND ARIZONA v JORNSON AED (19.:333,3

cT IS1.79 FED Od (@ STOPS TOLERARLE DURAT

N 21 ZURES "MISSION.” THAT 1510 ADDRESD TH

TRAEELC VIO ATION . THAT WARRANTED ThE SICH

INCIKED ERS CASE NO TRAFELC VIOLATIONS W
| S0OED \WHICH SaCOLD [NVALLDATE. THENARG

ENOAUNTER. Cfgwmoaewv AR THE SEizORE B
TIED T THE TRAEEIC. INFRACK ey

\WHEN TASKS

ARE OR. Q):—A%OJ\MBL\( 20D HAVE FEN COME

A=

THE UTHAMENTSMENT MA\(TOL.FP ATE C*,Elzmw

V.

ONRELATED INVESTIGATIONS “THAT DO NOT” | ENE

THE DETENTION. CAREN1 ES s US Ay e HO

QCT.283) 1O VED BHA ATRAFEIC STOPR RECOMES

EOON AW ERDS

IF TS PRe) ONGED RENGND THE T

REASONARLY REQUIPED TOCMPLETE THE MISSIAN

ISSUEING A TIOKET. AT HO?,125 SCT S%GH { O LEDS

18




(1507 58)

| THIE SCOPE OF ACTIV ITIES DURINGE A
NV ESTIGATERY. DETENTION MUST REASCNABLY.

#_____.L_@-. RELATED IO TRHE _CIRCUMSTANCES THAT
NI ALLY. SUSTIEIED THE SIOR ANDRBE RRIEE.

(F’) GREVND SY: DESTROY EDOR VoasT BEVIDENCE ..
L CALCONSTART. LS 3.83 " TRUTH IN EVIDENCE”
| PROVISION- AMENDMENT AT L3 REVEVANT EVIDENCE”
| BRALNOTBE_EXCLODED. LN ANY._ CRIMINAL CRCEDCRE.
| EVIOENCE ERROR. SUCH AS THE LOBT BODY CAMERR
| EreTAGE, |IN KB ERS CASE, CREATES A FERDERAL
| CONSTITOTICNAL CLAIM, TN ETTHER THE (T AMNOMT
o ____3__CDMEUJ_E>©@/_F)m5$:f: CONFREONTATION CLAURES OR.
o ITHE U AMENDIMENT DLE. PROCESS CLASE . (0E
I _P_;aocgsa\ao LATIOM EXCLODING ENIDENCE)
zw&‘f‘**ﬂ) KELLER MAINTAINS HE COOD NOT RECIEVE A
FAR TRIAL WITHOST TRE BODY CAMERA FOOTAGE
CTHAT SHOWS THERE \WAS NO MARISUANA, THE
FEMALE. COMING AND ASKING FER. HER PURSE OUTT
oF The cap. (Bxipr®R) (IMPLICATES HER NOT
KELL ER) AND OLTIMATLY PROVES A COMPLETE
o U DIFFERENT SENARIO THEN OFFICER L OPEZ.
I EsTEED OO, FRANUN va HENRY (9aiR 1997)
1188 3490, 1843 | RODY. CAMERA FOOTAGE 1S
CIAVAILARLE, (T WOLLD SHOW SOPPRESSION & WARRENTED
- AND TRE FACT THAT A FEMALE ASKED FOR WER PUBSE.
4 QL)’EQF'TZ\:LB_QAR »AND THE ONLY _PORSIE, WA THE ONE

.1 ! S o

SN -
19



Qo8

)

WATH ALL THE NARCOTICS FCOND INNT, PROVES

Y

ASONABLE

DOORTAT WAS NGT KEUL ERS, ONCE SHEASKED TOJ

1Y HER

PLRaE QBT OF THE CAR, AND THE CFFICER SAID HE

CIJLD

GET [T TR BER ShE WASTHE.I\I N ENG TO TELL TTRE

OFFICER \WHAY COLOR HER PURSE WA, [RST | T W

RATHE

ONLY PORSE INTHE VERCLE (A SMALL CLOTCH TYE

TRAT COMTAINED AL OfF THE NARCOTICD.

’E>PUES3

THE FACT THAT KELFRS ATTORNEY FALE!

TG

EMPHASIZE THE 19208 OF SOMEANE EV 25 CLAV

N&THE

PW%F CLFAQL\/ SHOWMS COONCELR INEFFECT

\ESS,

A ECOSTAGE. WD NOT OMY B2

Ok

&l) O E]g}};ig L OFEZ 2V AES T WO D BAVE CLEAR

LY &

EXPOSED ALL THE OTHER  PRACEDLRE VIQLATICH

NS .

PELADANT 1O RPANY A STATE MIST PROVIPDE. A

)

IV IDENCE, PAVORARLE TO THE DEFENSE, WWHREN T b

L

EVIDENCE 1s MATERIAL. R IT PROVIDES CROONMTL
THE, DEEENSE TO IMPFACH QR DIECRENIT THE CREMS

OF A STATE MWITNESS,. OR RO STER THE, PEFENSESC

LN WELY €0 OASE TRE, RODY CAMERA FTOTACE

2O
ATY
S AL

OF TRE ARCYE . EATHER INTENTIONALN R NAT (WHIC

1S

CINLAYELY WITH KEN ERS RECEATED REAVEST ERO

oY ONE

AT AY HEARINGS PRIOR TOMBDAYS AND AFTFQ){P@C
C AMERA TOGTAGE OF CFFICER WeNRY PP Exdii 1 #l]

{

NOY

BT

TERIAL

SO BAD FATH AND THAT VIDED EVIDENCE 16T

(G GROOND SEVEN: EALSE TESTIMONY

20
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N WEULERSCAE THE OFFICER. TECLARED ONE &Ik




T

T SEE ﬁta?&i'
= H12y THAT WATHTHE DA S BER EVCI/ED THrce

| THE 2URRESHON, HEARING AND DITIMATIY TR

| 1P MIEST STATE WITH ESTARLISH LAWS AT THE TRIAL AE

LYAD LoD EROMTRE (0 (0L, RERET TOTHE T8 1AL TEST—

-AN@W \/ao Gm\i /\FMQLH Y SEETL E(NT S0 eem e)
' " uﬂ;\ [ &P THE

C FFiC’l %&ILLI—( J_l& WH AND&JZ”LE&, Tht CHANGES ApE,.

SO QRVICES IN THE O SEC NS EACE THAT THeEE S

INO WAYTHE PERBURY WD NOT RENSTICED Y

THE DA T CHANGES TO DIBECTLY MEET THE STATER

CRITERIA, LT L EADS ANY REESON W ITH NOBIVAL REASONING

O BELIENIE AMITHOUT AR, THEAF ICERS, TEXT | -

= MVICNY HAD PEER COLARET [ THE OREUTING DA
1 TO ENSORE HIS EDENCE WO D NOT BE SOPRESSET

1 AND THE CASE. REING DISMISEED.

THE ARVICDSNESS OF OFE10ER LOREZS LIES AND

KELLEPS ATERES FALURE TACRSECT 0L PUSH T

IMPEACRIMENT SHOWS 2 ATENT [NAEFECTINE CornSsL

[N B2ROWN v6 WAINWRIGHT, DUGHER AND SMITR OF

FLORIDA MO Fad N7 (198 Us, ApP LEXIS ARICS

 THECCOPT PRUERSED THE DEN AL OFTHE CFEENDANTS

THE WRIT PECRAMTED 2

FEVITION, FoR WEIT OF HABFA_: (‘ofapm AND DLEF(:T{‘IB

 ALOWED MATERIAL EALSE. \F%T\ M@Mﬁ@ﬂ&@s&&

FALSE TESTIMONY THAT WAS THE XEYSTONE. OF THE

_ SIAES GASE,, JUST LIKE IN KE 1 ERRCASE,  NOT oY

WAS THE OFF\CERS TESTINONY. CHANGENTD TER\ENT

QUER =
21



18

SOPRESSION OF FROMTR OF THE 3EARCH ST MSOTUE

DA, TESTFED THAT INCONCLUSINE DRNA RpS(1TSON A

CUN EZOND WWITR THE NARAOTIAA VWAD IINA FRoM BCIVIAN

AND T HAD 0 BE 1ZFLLERS GFCALAE HE WASYTRE ChLY

MIAN THERE (LIXE [T WAS ORI DRAKE vs | A BORTONO

522 E203308002) (S APPLEXIS § |5 RECATE THE

STATC. WNCWINGLY 0ED FALSE TERTIMONY THECEIRT

CRANTED PETITICNERS \WRIT OF HARBEUSCOREE AND
OEDERED THE [NMATE RELFASED UNIESS THE

| STATE PeOVIDED HIM ANEW TRIAL WITHINADDAYS

KELLER 7D HIS ConNEEL AND GONBERNTER THE DA

AROEST THE OFEICERS STeeY CHANAES . D PeoresR s

VI ATED L ETREPE 1D LIIEYIRGOD FAL S TESTIMONY QLD

MAVE AEFECTED. THE JUNEEMENT OF THRE SURY, SUCKH

PURSERY WHEATHER ENQ RAGET BY THE PRONIEC \TOE COK

| AeURING WITHCOT HIS KNOWLEDEE TOE PRCCESD 19 [N-

~ EVITARLEY. DERMIEDN THE AcCUSED. RUEY VS STRE 93 NEV.

Nlol Bt B W (1992 N, LEXS £33

3Y;

CROND EIGHT 2 INAFECTINE. ACRISTANCE CF CaONSEL

AL KEN EPS PREVYOUE CHCUNTR SHOWS QorpsEY.

ERAZEL® INAFETCTINNESS FOP NST RABING THE \S80ED

WHICH KELLFR DaD RELAYED 70 i, PRICE T THE SOPREEION

HEARING: , THEN HE WAS EXTREMETY HNAFPCECTINIE FOR. NGT

APTEALING [T WHEN STHAT Wihey M) THAT Kelre HAD ASKED

FIM TO 10, 1D SAIDLING O THE SuPReesicN Hereihe USiNG

LOCRILG: CASE LAWS , AND TELL NG KELLER ™ E HE TESTIE|ED AT

THE S ERrEgieN HEADING HIS, PRIAR FELONIES WAND PE_ 168D AGAINST

22



LHIM AT TRIAI THIS CAUSED AN ISSUE BETWEEN KENER AND_
ERIZELL ON TR OF THE FACT. ARIZEW WCCLBAT USE ANCTHER
NN ESTIGATOR THE INVESTICATOR T KEILER HE KNEW RIS,
. | MOTHER AND STEREATHER AND TCLDKEL BB HIS MOTHER WAS
A REN P1EcE OF wioek STAPTING ARIGCONFLCT.CF
| INTERESTAFTER FINDINGCUT THE (INVESTIGATR (BB T
NCRY WITH KELLEPS: PARENTS AND THERE WASCENICUELY
e SOME BHESEN THE INVESTICATCRS PART.
| KELLER ALSORAS ALSNE KIST OF OMACCEETABLE
| PRACTICES OM RIS GOONSELS ONET . ERSTELL NBER VISITED.
(el ExCEST FoR ACTER KEUER PAID FOR A DIBERENT
_LLAwyER, (AND THEN QNI TOCMELAN ABUT IT L HE
| NEVER. SORFOENAED ANY OF IKBLLERS WITTNERSES, NEVER

) | ik TR THE TEATIVONY. OF THE DG HANDLER 0P K9
_ | RECCRS; NO GUESTION ING A CE HOAIE ITSMEUED CF___

_ I MARISUANA WOLLD THERS BF ABETOSMEN CITHER
_ | NARCCTCE NOT.LETECTLEE (ZCTHE HOMAN NOSE, OVER..
\ SUPRCEED STRONG SMELLCE MARKSCANA THE FIRST
OFEICER cralveD. (EMELL OF MARISUANA DCEI AT
______ L QUICKIN DISAPATE.) FACT (S KEWER HAD NESMKING
| DARAPHENALIA [N THECAR AND |ETHE CAR WO DS SMELEL
o HFROM SOMETIME £RICR, [T WCLD ST BAVE SMELLED TWO.
o UMINOTER L er WHEN THE NEXT._OFEICER ARRINED, AND HE
e TESTIEIED HE NEVER SEENCR SMELLED ANYTH MN&CExipT™s)
TPLZ(:LL NEVER RE(AVED KELLERS MENTAL, HEALTH BISTORY. .
R | O&”&H&LFM KELL ER2 MAS ON ANDCEE DIFFERENT....

o LIMEDICATIONS. DORING TRHE PRE ~Tpﬂ_m©cgﬁﬁ_,,___

VED =
23



e F.E)
)«L Ll_gia HAD_H&&A. PRIVATE ATTORNEY (I NDERTHEE.

- iM PRESSION. THE CONSTITUSTION - CGAVE BN THE RIGHTT T
1LAN . ATTORMEY CF HISOIN CROSSING FoP FHSTRIAL . 20T

S EAMILY. DINNT RAE THE E NS T PAY FeRCNE

| DNITIL APPRGOMATLY AMONTH [REFORE THE TRIALIATE..
QUL TRE PROSECOTION CLAIMEDIT WAS A SIALL TACTIC,,

AND THE STTUDAE. DENIEDME THE. ASSISTANCE OF ATTTRNEY.
2y FELICIANG, (exiam” 1S) RECAVSE SHE HAD TLBT G657

My FLLE THAT DAY Feen FRzeil AND THE SUNHE SAMD

RE_WORLD NOT OROER. A CANTINDANCE () HER Ring

AND NORCDY (OULD ACCERT MY CASE AND BE READY T

A TRIAL NG DAYS TN NAS A ERADAY ANDTHE TRIAL

CovimeNeeD PN MOMOAY.

KEL | ER 1S ENTITLED TO AN _EVIDENTOARY HEARING

TO SHOW INAFEECTIVE CODNSE) . AT TiAL COONSEL. .

DIDMNT ORYICCT 0 THE FACT WELL SRS CREN IG5 FELON ¥ES
\WERE NCT T 0 70, THE (BN AND THAT THEY WERE

GO TORE, LREDTO ADTSUNCATE REWER ASA HASTURL

/ST SENTENCING , NCR WS Kell PR ALVOWED A HEARIN(~

1O ARGUE MITIGATING FACTORS By IDISNCE OR WITTNESS

STATEMENTS IN DETEEVIN | NG WHEATHER OR NOT TO

DISMISS KEILERS CASE,

T WAS PAINFT

HAVE KE1) FRR REST il\lTJ:QEST AT fw AND D\B‘ﬂ%&z

| BapE. MINIMUM N KELL SRS, GERALE, FRIPELL LIED TO

KELLER Y TELL NG (M TRAT (£ HE TOOK A PLEABARGAIN

B \AGND 1RE. CAVING WP IS RIGHT TO APPEAL RIS
SUPR RasON HEARING,

24
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‘

|
-
i

Exlor® u) COLNBEL FAILED T SURECENA OR EVEN RETLEN CALS,
OF WITNESSES, HE EVEN TOLD ONE WITNESS THAT_ WAS
AT THE TRIAL T COQUSTIDE AND NEVER TOLD ER SWE
mLD_.lj&hLCIO SIT.CHTHIDE. THE COreTRIGM FCe.
RS AND SHE HADTOLEAVE TOGOTO WORY,
REFORE SHE EVER GOT THE CHANCE 0 TESTIEY.
CERIZEL ALD FALEDTO CAUL FANILY. AND WITHESSES T
! SPEAR O IREV ER2 BENA & AT THE PENALTY PRARE,
I THEIR, TESTEMONIES WoHLD HAVE SHONN THAT KELLER
L HAD STRCNG FAMIS AND COMMUNITY SOFRURT_\ T
WOGD RANE, BRONED THAT KELLER 19 NOT THE MENACE
| TTHE STATE WANTED THE CORT 10 BELIENE , [BOT OFERY
L LovEDR BY RS EANMIY, CONMUONITY AND FRIENDS, Dis-
| =PELLING THE PRCBECUTORS LUES AND BADTHE CHINCE
T CHANGE. THE QISTCOME. OF KBELLERS SENTENSE NEV VS
o KIORICH Srwell 188 NEY- 751,128 PR NSB.(Ans)
CALNEV L EXIS P NEY, ADV, RER. (0 NO NGS5 REASCNARIE
- PRORABILITY. THAT THE SURY WCLLD HAVE REACHED A
B | DIEFERENT_RESUT HADTHE WINEEEATESIFED 1S
ANAFFECTIVE COUNSEL ) WHEN FRIZELL. FAN BT ADERETLY
o INVESTIGATE. AND SUCRENA TESTIMCNY FRM WITNERES
THAT WOCED HAVE SCORTED KEUFRS, INNCCENSE 1S A
W@*:*L/_AMENDV\EL\ELVIQLAI@N, WHEN INAFFRETTINE COONSEL..
LEAWED TO MAKE PRETRIAL INVESTIGATION.
_KELLERS \WITNESES WoOLD OF TESTIFED Thal
— ANCTHER FEMALE RESIDER INTHE TR AUEE QWNED..
e Y KELER. ANDTIAT PRIGE IO 1Y L AST TRAE)L. SHE HAD.

P o OVER
25
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ey

JUST SWITOHED VERICT ES WiTH HIM, ANCTHER. WITNESS WO D

CF TESTIFIED KEUER WAS LIVING WiIYH HER AT ThE

TME CF THE ARREST, THIS SHOWS HOW INAFFECTIVE

ColNSEL WAS FOP WO T EMPRASIZ | NEr THAT A FEMALE

CAME (RPTO WEOC?N%AMD.&SHLMW

THE NAPCOTICS \WERE EOONMD (N Al
HA\LCM&EDM(RIQE&@MA%M

TO ESTARUISH THAT THIS WAS THE WOMAN THAT ASLEDTO CET HER BURSE

COT CETHE CAR NOTE SHE. {WAS CHASCED WITH TRAFE IING METHAMPUETMN
AND HERION [ 566 THAN A WEEK AFTER KELUERS ARREST WICH SHONS

THE_ STEONG FROPARILTY THE LPLES [\ THE PORSS [N KELERSCAR

| wmw&r{mmmwm

FACT

(WM%ELAEQEALLE R

CLORED \WHEN CEECHERS FURST Wjﬂ.ﬁﬁﬂéﬁm
T &PLMMMLW

TOTHE lmamw@aw&mm;_

THE GLove Y. sterrssny

THE K9 ENTFRING THE INTERICI OF THE CAR IS A CONSTITUTIONAY,

VIO ATION FSTARUGHED IN IMANY_CASE. | AWS AN A NGB CONCEDED THAT

Beg Cop

RO WERE, i—_&)ND\NONE!ﬁE BEZH&, I%kﬂ !AI%&M INED 71

AT THAT mu—r (\Nn—p"mr LJCJJz AILG)WE’D PER NQS (4,123 BT

INCTHING: WAS FOIIND (ONTI. S H o WHEN 1. OFFICERS

AP VED FOD THE. SEARCH \WARRENT, 3 HOOPA AMD RTMINUTES

AFTER KENER \WAS TIRST PETAINED (EXBITE) TiE

OFFEICERS TESTYEIED 1O THS , JANT WMMQMLCQ

TPITIMONY. AS TOTRE K9
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VERIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he
is the petitioner named in the foregoing petition and knows the
contents thereof; that the pleading is true of his own
knowledge, except as to those matters stated on information and
belief, and as to such matters he believes them to be true.

e 1

[&//) gﬁégﬁ K. Keller 8 9/6%¢
Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

6/14’.5/5’//6&‘& 2 % hereby certify,pursuant to
N.R. C P. 5(b), that on this day of the month of
NG s £+ of the year 207? , I mailed a true and correct
copy of the foregoing PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
addressed to:

Warden Bﬁ K-Er)\

Lovelock Correctional Centerx
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada

Catherine—Cortez—Masto NPRN foRry B Ieo A ol
Nevada Attorney General i pprom.
100 No. Carson Street . 2 weEKs peisR Dle

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 /’To cmr NaT fsfaa
PN
rreven B warsosd ﬂ'64‘fﬁ5 (iyﬁfwf

Bsuid-—Rewe

Clark County District Attorney
P.0. Box 552211

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211

Steved GﬁrEKSvN (ciea) / % M’\

%@0 L@,/t& Ave. f“ﬂ
il Lovelock’C 1

% '/ECM"?/ NV 89165 lggg gglsogrﬁ:gmm Center
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EX i T

Corrections (NDC); as to COUNT 2 - LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) witha
MINIMUM parole eligibility AFTER TEN (10) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections
(NDC); COUNT 2 CONCURRENT with COUNT 1; as to COUNT 3 - to a MINIMUM of TWELVE
(12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC); COUNT 3 CONCURRENT with COUNT 2; as to COUNT 4 - to a MINIMUM of
TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in the Nevada
Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 3 CONCURRENT with COUNT 3; as to COUNT 5 -to a
MINIMUM of TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 5 CONCURRENT with COUNT 4; as to COUNT
6 - to a MINIMUM of TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in
the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 6 CONCURRENT with COUNT 5; as to
COUNT 7 - to a MINIMUM of TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48)
MONTHS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 7 CONCURRENT with — —___
COUNT 6,45 t0 COUNT 8 - Defendant SENTENCED UNDER THE LARGE HABITUAL CRIMINAL
STATUTE to LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a MINIMUM parole
eligibility AFTER TEN'(10) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 8

ON IVE to COUNTS1,2,3,4,5. 6. 7, COUNT 9 - Defendant SENTENCED UNDER THE
ARGE HABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUTE to LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC)
with a MINIMUM parole eligibility AFTER TEN (10) YEARS in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC); COUNT 9 CONCURRENT with COUNT 8; for a TOTAL AGGREGATE
SENTENCE of LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of
TWENTY (20) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections; with FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY-NINE
(559) DAYS credit for time served. FURTHER ORDERED, $150.00 DNA Analysis fee including
testing to determine genetic markers, WAIVED as previously ordered.

C-16-312717-1

NDC
CLERK'S NOTE: minutes corrected to reflect the correct credit for time served. te 8/16/2017

CLERK S NOTE: minutes corrected to reflect the correct concurrent counts. te 8/21/2017

PRINT DATE:  03/28/2019 Page 53 of 59 Minutes Date:  February 18, 2016
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the house when it does not say

happen --~

THE COURT: Okay.

ch, wow, we found this here so
house because we found this.

THE COURT: Okay.

argument.

MR. FRIZZELL: Okay,

from the State con that,.
MR. DICKERSON: Yes,
THE CCURT: What, if
Judge Sciscento for additional

in order to allow the officers

MR. FPRIZZELL: There'

being belonging to Mr, Keller that he had pul
of this apartmentiand was in the officer's affidavit

attempting to enter that apartment,

19

what it was in the house or

excuse me, in the car or any statement maybe, possibly made

by Mr. Keller after he was Mirandized, which that didn't

MR. FRIZZELL: -- that leads the officers to say.

there must be something in the

g ——

THE COURT: Mr. Frizzell, I understand your

all right.

THE COURT: WNotwithstanding the timing of when

you've made this basically cral metion, I'm geing to hear

Your Honor.
anything, was provided to
infermaticn or probable cause

to search his apartment?

MR. DICKERSON: The additional information or

probable cause was that they identified the apartment as

in freont

nd that was then

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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20

preceding and after this point they Find the large quantities
of drugs indicative of drug dealing inside his vehicle that
is also his vehicle.

So his vehicle, his apartment, same location, and
it is based con the probable cause that a drug gealer is
likely to have his supply inside his home. And soc when they
established there was that large quantity of drugs there in
his vehicle, it established that he is a drug dealer. Those
are without a doubt not drugs of personal use.

With that, Judge Sciscento found probable cause and
that creates a presumption of validity. The officers relied
on that and relied on that in good faith. So regardless of
anything, the good faith exception that applies going back
even to the probable cause in this case.

THE COURT: Okay. Sc the bottom line is, is that
he gets stopped. Based on the stop, a search warrant was
issued. They were able to search his vehicle. They found a
large number of narcotics, multiple types of narcotics and
the stop was, if not adjacent to, but in front of the
apartment, and they were -- the apartment complex, they were
able to identify him as living in one of those apartments,
and based on the training and experience of the officer, they
felt that as drug dealers, based on what they found in the
vehicle, that he would have firearms, narcotics, money from

drug proceeds in his residence.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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A Affirmative. One of my squadmates, Officer Lopez,
had done a vehicle stop, and based on the circumstances of
the scop, he nmncmmmma additional units,

Q And roughly, how long after that call would you say

you responded to the scene?
— \.!1:/'1[!‘1 s

mﬂa=l-MIﬁmme Say approximately, within five minutes I
was not too far away when he requested help.,

Q Okay. And when you arrived, what did you see?

A I saw Officer Lopez had a vehicle stopped as well
as he had a subject out of the vehicle in front of his -- his

vehicle in handcuffs.

Q Okay. And $o at that point, what did you do? "Were
you assigned something Lo do or what did you do?

A I was just there Lo assist him with anything that
he needed. I wasn't necessarily assigned anything.

Q Okay. So did he ask you to perform any particular
tasks on that evening?

A The only thing that he specifically asked me to do
was to read Miranda to the individual he had stopped.

Q Okay. Did you do that?

B I did.

Q Did you have occasion to do anything with the car
that Officer Lopez had stopped?

A Throughout the course of the investigabtien, I did

assist in searching. I wasn't assigned that duty. I just

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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helped out.

Q Okay. And when you say searched, can you be a
litcle bit more specific? What was it that you did or what
jobk did you perform on the vehicle?

A We were searching the vehicle for lr there was my
understanding probable cause to believe that there was
illegal narcotics inside the vehicle.
|liﬂxm<; And what led you to believe that?

I'llll.'illllll-'lﬂ
A I can't remember T

Lo Q

as specifically Officer
Lopez that saw or smelled, but I believe there was a hint of

]

Q Okay. S0 what part of the vehicle do you recall

marijuana that he smelled inside the <m:wnpm_

searching?

a 1 specifically remember seaxching the driver
compartment, so the driver's seat and the passenger seat so
the front of the vehicle.

Q OWww. And did ycu have occasion to look into the
glove box?

A I did.

Q Can you describe with a you -- what, if anything,
you did to the glove box?

A I opened the glove box.

Q Okay. Did it open naturzlly? Did you have to pry
it open? How did you have to open it?

A Initially, it just opened naturally, from what I

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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I guess I'll circle it.
And was there a door on this glove box?

Yes. It's the -- the door and the sides -- there's

actual sides of the door when you pull it out, so it comes out

with it, and so that was actually in there and it was

obstructing the majority of the hole. You could only see

about the top -- abouk -- just the Lop little portion of the

hole that you could actually see.

Q

You're indicating with your fingers about an inch,

maybe an inch-and-a~quarter?

oo o

Q

High, and then a couple inches long.
Okay. But you couldn’t see that full hole?
No, you couldn't see this full hole.

And so some steps were taken Lo remove the actual

door te the glove box?

A
Q

be used?

A

Yes. Officer Fenry had removed the glove box.

Okay. Did that come off easily or did tools have to

No, it nmam off easy enough. He didn't have to have

any special tools that I'm aware of,

Q

So, now looking at State's Exhibit 20, is that the

hole as it appeared?

A

same hole.

Q

Yes, it's just -- this is a closer up view of the

S0, once you have this door of the glove box open

'ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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and you can now see this hole, what do you guys do?

A Well, we tried to get the bag ocut. And we could
tell that there was a black bag inside the hole, the same bag
that I suspected had a firearm in it, and we -- you can't pull
the bag out through this hole.

And so while Officer Henry was trying Lo get the bag

h_this hole, I actually walked up, and\if the

passenger door is open on the car, the side of the dash panel
that's closest te the door is basically just & simple little
plastic cover. I walked over to the plastic cover, and I
popped it off, and it just simply popped right off, and you

could gek to thg bag that way as well.

Q I'm going to show you what's been marked and
admitted here as State's Exhibit 17. Is that area that you're
talking about lecated in this exhibit?

A Yes. Basically, it's this whole plastic piece right
here. That all pops off, and I basically touched it right
about here, and just kind of got a little hold on it, and
popped it off.

Q And when you're indicating that you got a little
hold on ik, you're just indicating with <o:n.n::aUm

A Yeah. Basically, it was just -- you can grab it
with your finger, and just kind of grab onto it, and it pops
off, so.

o] Okay. So you didn't have to use any tools to take

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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' ., LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
CONTINUATION

Event#  LLV160128000259

SECTION 2-
CUSTODY PHASE:

KELLER, CHRISTOPHER ID#. 1804258 was taken into_custody during the Initlal vehicle stop and was later
booked at CCDC on the firearm and narcotic related charges, o e

SECTION 3

SEARCH PHASE:
The search.wag.gxecuted by Officer J. Henry Pit 14753, CSI 8. Thi P#14373 and me, Officer D. Lopez

P#3808, Officer Henry removed the glove box door, | removed a sidé panel on the right passenger sldm

-

( dashboard which fevealed aif altérnate acgess point into the hidden compartment, which was proving difficult —
. 'to access via the x.(Thside the hidden compartmen ack—bengSﬂ'ﬁrﬁﬁ%Whed the
ack bag In place then removed the bag while donning latex gloves, CSI Thi carefully opened the biack bag

which had two large goiden colored reseal able plastic bags inside. C8I Thi took digital photographs as she
removed the contents of each reseal able bag. The recovered items are listed as follows:
. - M__-____\

1) ODVA+METH 351.4GG WICHECKLIST
2) ODV+HEROIN 36.4 GG W/ CHECKLIST
3) ODV+COCAINE .8 GG W/ CHECKLIST
4) SMALL BLUE PILLS 25.3 GG

5) BLUE DUST 1.1GG .

8) OXYCODONE 30 MG

7) SILDENAFIL 100MG

8) MULT! COL PILLS ¢

9) SMALL OVAL PILLS

10) SEMI AUTO HANDGUN USA BERETTA 22 SERIAL #C35418
11) BERETTA MAGAZINE

12) 22 SHORT AMMUNITION (7 ROUNDS)
13} US CURRENCY $2187.00

14) NICE MENS WRIST WATCH

15) CRYSTAL.SUBSTANCE .3GG

16) BAGGIES W/ BLACK POUCH

Officer J. Henry located in the giove box a Nevada DMV registration certificate for the 2002 DODGE STRATUS

(SILVER) VIN 4B3AG42HX2E162394 BEARNING NV PLATE 098-ASW bearing the suspect's name Keller
Christopher and his address 265 N. Lamb Apt F, Las Vegas NV 88110.

I elso located approximately 75 small clear baggies commonly used to sell llegal narcotics beneath the front
driver's seat, where Keller had previously been seated. ' :

Page 4
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

' ' CONTINUATION
* Event #: 160128-0259

PCS with Intent to Seli-Marijuana

PCS with Intent to Sell-Schedule1-4
Possession of Dangerous Drugs WIO RX-
Sildenfail

Destruction of Evidence

SECTION 1
IDETAILS; SERROA W
executed a search warrant signed by Judge M. Andress-Tobiasson on 1/28/2016 at 0610 hoursdduring the
exgcution © artant additional evidence was located an: alise was developed to search the
suspect's residence. At 0331 Officer J. Vance P#9004 contacted RMIN and logged the address with Liz, there
were no confiicts, | drafted the second (piggy back) telephonic search warrant and contacted Sgt. Haas who
approved the warrant, The warrant was also approved by Lt. G, Warner. Next | contacted DDA Liz Mercer
who approved the search warrant. Finally | at 0935 hours on 1/28/2016 | contacted Judge Sciento and made
application for my telephonic search warrant via a recorded conversation. Judge Sciento approved and signed
the warrant.

SECTION 2
CUSTODY PHASE:

Kelter, Christopher was already in custody for multiple felony charges which arose from the first search
warrant.

SECTION3
SEARCH PHASE;

The search warrant was executed by Officer LOPEZ 9808, SGT, HAAS 7420, DET EMBRY 6223, DET
BELMONT 8240, DET MANCAO 6844 and Officer HOUGH 7814. During the warrant's service, Det Embry
located a Ruger Smm P89 serial number 804-86548 semi auto handgun with a magazine and live ammunition
in from Keller's bedroom closet. Det Embry was wearing latex gloves during the search and recovered the
firearm. No one else handled the firearm. Det Embry located 3 boxes of 22 short ammunition in the storage
shed. |located & glass smoking pipes, 4 scales, and 1 box of 9mm ammunition containing 15 rounds in the
bedroom. Det Belmont P#8240 located a glass Jar In the freezer with 188.4 grams net weight of marijuana.
Det Embry located a pay stub in the bedroom indicating Keller resides at the residence. Det Embry conducted
a buccal swab kit according to the warrant, | located two bags in the bedroom containing 4.4 and 3.1 grams
net weight of meth. | located a third clear plastic bag containing 1.1 grams net welght of heroin. All evidence
was digitally photographed by Officer Hough prior to recovery and later impounding. There was no other
personal items such as clothing, or bathroom supplies that suggested anyone else resided at residence other
than Keller.

Page 2
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CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO, C-16-312717-1

DEPT. NO. 3

IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP
COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, PRELIMINARY HEARING

vs. Case No.
16F01430X%
CHRISTOPHER ROBERT
KELLER,

e M et et et et et et et e

Defendant.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
BEFORE THE HONQRABLE CYNTHIA CRUZ
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

TAKEN ON TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2016
AT 9:00 A.H,

APPEARANCES:

For the State: Sarah Killer, Esq.
Deputy District Attorney

For the Defendant: Michael Sanft, Esgqg.
Las Vegas, Nevada

REPORTED BY: ROBERT A. CANGEMI, CCR No, 888
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Q. The charges that are filed in a case are
determined by my office, the District Attorneys
officé, correct? ' |

A. Correct.

MR. KILLER: No further questions

MR. SANFT: One more question.
FURTRER RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SANFT;

Q. Just to make sure we are clear, did you ever
recommend at any point ever recommend any of these
traffic citations as charges to the DA's office for
prosecution?

A. I did not recommend charges to the DA's
office.

Q. bid you ever £ill out any paperwork
indicating you thought that there were potentially
good charges for a broken tail light, or traveling
at a high rate of speed, or travelling down the
center lane of North Lamb; did you ever put that in
any type of documentation here?

Al No. That was my decision out in the field.

Q. It was your decision to ignore everything

leading up to the actual finding of drugs and a gun

36
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39
vehicle was because my client smoked it?
A, I did not.
Q. Did you ever cite my client for any of these

other traffic violations that you had mentioned, the
centinuing through a through lane, or the traveling
at a h%gh rate of speed, you didn't know how fast

he was going?

A. I did neot cite him on the traffic
violations. I c¢ite him for the felonies.

Q. Did you cite him for anything other than the
fact that he possessed these drugs or so forth
inside his wvehicle?

A, I didn't cite him, I placed him under arrest
for the narcotics.

0. So in terms of anything leading up to the
actual narcotics, yvour testimony here is that
because of the fact that you are able to smell
marijuana, you can't tell us how youn smelled the
marijuana, or where the marijuana was coming from,
and based upon that is the reasons why you at that
point arrested my client, and then had enough
probable cause to go into the vehicle?

M8. KILLER: Objection, misstates the
testimony as to the order of events.

THE COURT: Not really, but go on,

37
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a Yes.
v] Qkay, both of those addresses being 265 North --

Nerth Lamb Boulevard, Unit F?

Yes. e //l\\.lll.ffr/l\\lllllfl
— P )
Q zozﬂ:xnttmmvm‘nzmum was some contact with a female

on scene?
A Yes.
Whe was this?
I == I don't recall her name.
You said that Officer Vance had spoken to her?
Yes.

When did she come up to you?

PO Y OO O

During == during the stop, she had come up, and she
had told us she wanted to get her purse out of Lhe car.
Officer Vance had asked rmm what color the purse was, and she
said she didn't know, and we said, well, how do you know if
your purse is in the car if you don't even know what color the

\fI|I\\l\\\/flllllll!rll\\l

purse is?

;/frifilmyl||l\\\\\H”IIIll]llfllIllll\lllil\\

MR. FRIZZELL: I'm going to object, hearsay.
That --

MR. DICKERSON: And Your Honox, defense counsel
opened the door on this one.

THE OOCLH“ Well, the -~ it's still hearsay. The --

MR. DICKERSON: 1It's still hearsay, but it's just

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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170

clarifying what he's already brought out.

THE COURT: Well, he said purse. 1'm going to
sustain the objection as to her describing what the -- what
the purse was and not saying -- or not am%:o able te describe
the purse.

MR. DICKERSON: Okay,

THE COURT: So, ladies and gentlemen, I'm going to
instruct you you must disregard the statements regarding her
stating thal she couldn't give a description of the purse,
okay? All right.

BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q You did -~ or Officer Vance did request more
information about the purse? ,

A Yes.

o] And did an officer on scene conduct a search of the

vehicle for a purse?

A Yes.

Q Was a purse located?

A No.

¢} Was that odd to you?

A Yes,

Q Now, just real quickly, we've gone over what was

marked and admitted as part of State's Exhibit 85 the pipes in
this case. Just for the jury's edification, you were

describing a methamphetamine pipe earlier?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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LCCLL FORM 24.054

JFH\ A-SC

‘ .
EX | 5|

1 M o N

2| Dntotee Kdg vmoio FILED

3|| 1200 Prison Road 7

Lovelock, Nevada 89419 JUN12 %4

: ?E}mf:w:&#\ In Pro Se %Eﬁm

6 DISTRICT COURT

7 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

8 For ok ow e

? MKEUEQ . ) :
10 @EEJ:LOE._@& , ; case No. C~1b-2i27179-

I -va- g Dept. No. ﬁ(_)s

12 otate of MevADA: , ; DATE OF HEARING:

13 Pesganpent- § TIME OF HEARING: ;u;g:, ':019
14 i )

15 MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF

16 coMES NOW Defeiomt , _(heshiee R Keleg | in pro se,
17 and moves the Court for an order directing the Clerk of the

18 Court to prepare or cause to be prepared, transcripts of the

19 (list the hearing(s)/date(s) for which you request transcripts):
Pl 02/17)20(e , 02/18[201% 0302 )20k , 030 [2it, 03/1sf201s
21 ;23{‘14[2’0( b (I_po NOT _NEED my Pﬂﬁla'm.‘uﬁﬁ!?' Herfing Fﬂﬂwmgg '
22 and to serve same upon him at his place of confinement.
23 This motion is made and based upon the requirements of NRS
24 34.370(4); NRS 34.760(2); all papers, pleadings and documents on
25 file herein; the instant (check applicable pending action to
26 which this motion relates)-/___ petition for writ of habeas
27 corpus ___ motion to/for ;
280177

RECEIVED
JUN 12 2019
CLERK OF THE COURT
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and the following points and authorities.
POINTS AND AUTHORITIRS
Petitioner/Defendant has filed a ./ petition for writ of

habeas corpus motion to/for

, presenting ground(s)/claim{s) for relief. NRS

34.730(4) and NRS 34.760(2) require that the presentation of
habeas petitions be supported by affidavits, records,
transcripts or other relevant evidence. Id. Petitions and
motions which are not supported by such evidence render the
claims therein to be bare and naked allegations, unsupported by
the record and meriting dismissal. Haxgrove v. State, 100 Nev._
498, 686 P.2d 222 (1984). Ses alsQ Griffin v, State, 122 Nev.
737, 137 P.3d 1165, 1170 (2006) (defendant must support his
claims with "specific facts" demonstrating entitlement to relief
sought) ; Berjarano v, Warden, 112 Nev. 1466, 929 P.2d 922 {1996)
(defendant bears burden of establishing factual allegations in
support of his claims).

In order to obtain this Court's order to produce the
requested transcripts, Petitioner/Defendant need show that they
would serve a useful purpose and that he would be prejudiced
without them. pPeterson v, Warden, 87 Nev. 134, 483 P.2d 204,
205 (1971). Petitioner/Defendant requires the transcripts at
bar in order to support his ground(s}/claim(s), which have
merit, as sﬁgyn on the separate page(s) annexed hereto as page
(s) M‘Wﬂ&gf‘ describe your grounds/claims and
demonstrate how the requested transcripts are necessary to avoid
a dismissal/denial of same}, and as are incorporated as if set

forth herein. Prejudice is demonstrated inasmuch as due to the

-2-
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CERIIFICATE OF SERVICE

I do certify that I mailed a true and correct copy of the
foregoing MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF TRANSCRIPTS to the below

address on this "/f day of TL"NL‘ , 2o/f , by

placing same in the U.S. Mail via prison law library staff:

Attorney For Respondent

LovelocK Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

,/E'/r)‘(///m‘ﬂ In Pro Se

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
MOTION FOR PRODUCTICON OF TﬁANSCRIPTS AT STATE EXPENSE does not

contain the social security number of any person.
74
Dated this }/ day of 7“/14" ,, 20 /7 .
M
/"72 ‘ zé; 7oz gg/z <

J%)Z///Z’m In Pro Se
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No.C' ~/4~3(27/ 7-/ DepNo_X/X

IN THE 8 - JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVAD, mum FOR F| LED
THE COUNTY OF ClAni&
JUN12 2913

S fsom

Che il bl

Petitioner/Plaintiff,

STATE of
NEVANAF

Respondent/Defendant

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION
Itis roquested that the Motion entitled Wotiov /o (MWF/
/75 QECLJ Eyi penct PZWT"S) .whchwuaﬁmm:dfﬁladmu;c
Y ey ot e , 204 in the above-eatitod matier, be subraitiedto the Comt for
it's consideration.
The undersignod Petitioner/Plaintif}, crtifis that a copy of the motion notod sbove and this
pieading, have beea served upon the Respondent Defendaut,
Datcdthis_7 7 dayof ) Leps€ 2017

//&/@’\

Lovet’ ﬁ C~C Petitioner/Plaintiff
oo m
Ay P\ ey
Fly-MwmeSigil =g

RECEIVED
UN T2 208
GLERK OF THE COURT
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FILED
JUN 12 2088
INTEE __ 9" JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE %’6‘?’6&1’?

STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF __C /R4

camro_C-1b-312117 -

}
Petitioner, % Degt No.__ X} X
Vs, ; Docket No.
SE of NEVAD R i
. Respondent
REOQUEST FO RDS/CQURT CASE DO N
SPECH in |% EViDEnce J\Mros,
COMBS NOW, Petitioner, _{ ?/z_,ér'sfc;/’/éﬁé Kefae , Pro per, and

mmmmlmmumwmm,,mmumam«mmm-

e BosGemisireivitiomamtramwipwetams, =\/|)ENCE PhoTos .
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES -

In Griffin v, Rlingis, 351 U.S. 12, 76 :S. Ct. 585, 100 L.EA. 891, the United States Supreme Court
wmnmummmmmdmmdmrmmmm:m
denics an indigent defendant the transcripts necessary for his appeal. The Court held: '

%emnbemequaljusﬁcewhmthckiﬁofnhialammm&pmdsmthc
mmtd’mmyhembuﬁmddmdanummbeaﬁoﬁedundeqmmmmimu
defmdMWhohmmoncymxghmmymwipu.“'Mythcabiﬁlymmymin
mummmmmwmmmmm'smtmmmmmmuw
as an excuse o deprive a defendant of a fair trial ™

T'hisGrjﬂiupﬁwiplehnsbeeuappﬁedinolhcr U.S. Supreme cases as well, Sce Burns
¥, Ohig, 360 U.S. 252, 79 :S, Ct. 1164, 3 LEd 1209(Applicable to state collateral proceedings).

Also, Smith v. Beunett, 365 U.S. 708, 81 :S. Ct. 895, 6 L.Ed. 39(No requirement of paying

RECE ey

JUN 172 29,5
CLERK OF Ty COURT
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statuiory filing fecs). ThnNevadaSumeaurtlmalmadcptedtheGdﬂ'inpﬂndplew

Nevada. See State v, Eighth Judicial District Court, 396 P. 2d 680.
CONCLUSION
mmmmmmmmmmmﬂmmﬁm

this Court to Grant this Request.
paTeD s {1 dsyof_ TV wwIE , 2049,
Hropn el Ke\\ek
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

IhuebymufypummwN.R.C.P S(b)thatlamﬂml’mhuwmﬂnm}lmof
ManmdeequeﬁForRmdﬂCmChqumHonm_tdlyof JiE -
zﬂj,lmdmammmmﬁmmmmb!mnmam
official at the Ely State Prison to deposit in the U.S. Mail, sealed in an envelope, postage pre-peid, and

addressed as follows:
Srevers V. G\aagz&m/

200 [ewns Be Q
RS vELAD MY BUS -

(%2

(/ Sy | —
(//’lAe!ﬁ?éfAffL fdz//

DATED this q dayof ) WE L2014,
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B 030

it Jeloe oo 8280
CERTIFY THAT I AM THE UNDERSIGNED INDIVIDUAL AND THAT THE
ATTACHED DOCUMENT BNTITLED feguest dve
TI0BE Yroios et w To Compel
DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OF ANY

PERSONS, UNDER THE PAINS AND PENALTIES OF PERJURY.
$io - |
DATED THIS L{ DAYOF __YWNE 20 19

ANy

SIGNATURE:

3
o~

INMATE PRINTED NAME: ( %kaé/éfk Alfer
INVATENDOCE S/ 850
INMATE ADDRESS: ERRBEIBSMEON  Love| oce. Cortchonn Crben.

p (7 @) PRrio0rs RD.

m Lovelooe NV BHGQ
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EX)Q}T # .“ C C’%}‘j 2 LeHeks

Teo  hem iT mev concern,

T p\f\mgmm K&\\s&. WA GIIN ConlYy . DaYE

of Pco(?-\ ?,q\“' 2014 Jop -‘\-(-‘.m% oAl EADENCE D\«cfos

Qpbm nal  CASE Fe- -lb- 3‘1'1\11 OWT_ ?JF]\C,

#Cl_

i wﬁwavaQ Arom Ely o [,ov’c:\vd_& PRitors, T

| et hAve  ecieyto Pjrwjr\,\uqc\ Qe A0 Ye  Ont Copng
Lok e P(Om‘u\ 24 72,019 Yhegavn T I\Pr\/\;d‘hr} v eecew

o B\ DENGE p\mms

J(JN %? og lh; T have Jr\,ncc D&Oﬂ %Qmﬁsm

-P\~6 MR)r -\—E.PrNE{Lo%’ Lo He \\FM)-\NHS Gt case™

lC““a S -1 e 4«\~6 DPA'CS 2-Y- 20\ 4 3-7- 2’0“’/

2-1%-20% 4 2-le70lb -1  yeen Hue Dol cousX

E*Wq’r Q\@xsﬁ n Keaa &mmm \wﬂf Wx  cowef

pipgntes . 'L‘MM@ M pmér wmémé
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Tharie zlfw R0 el bime § pstsineg

d
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|
L C-C \?/0() fpgad LD
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TExeT ®IL AT

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

DECLARATION OF ARREST Event# 1601280259
“Click here to add/edit Eventd and ID# on al! pages™” LD.#: 1804258
"PRINT"
True Name: ' KELLER, CHRISTOPHER Date of Arrest:  01-28-16 Time of Arrest; 0244

OTHER CHARGES RECOMMENDED FOR CONSIDERATION:
GOther Charges

THE UNDERSIGNED MAKES THE FOLLOWING DECLARATIONS SUBJECT TQ THE PENALTY FOR PERJURY AND SAYS: That | am a
peace officer with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Clark County, Nevada, being so employed for a period
of 9 years.

That | leamed the following facts and circumstances which fead me to believe that the above named subject commitied
{or was committing) the offense(s) of POSS FIREARM BY PROHIBITED PERSON, TRAFF METH, PCS WITS, PCS
HEROIN, PCS MJ MORE THAN 102, at the location of 265 N LAMB, LV NV 89110, and tha! the offense(s} occurred at
approximately 0225 hours on the 28th day of Jan, 2016, in the:

[x}County of Clark [Ccity of Las Vegas
DETYAILS FOR PROBABLE CAUSE:
On 01-28-16, at 0225, | Officer Lopez, P#9808, while operating as marked patrol 1G24, observed a silver 2002 Dodge
Stralus with NV plate 088ASW traveling northbound at 132 N Lamb In the center turn lane. The Dodge stratus had made
an abrupt left turn fram Sunrise Ave and had continued the entire time In the center turn lane while never entering the #1
northbound travel lane. The Dodge stratus was traveling at high rate of speed. | made a U-turn to conduct a records
check on the vehicle and noticed the passénger tail lamp was broken. The driver continued to accelerate and madé an
abrupt left tum info the “Crossroads III" apartment complex. It was apparent the driver, who would Jater identify himself
with a NV DL as Keller, Christopher 4llE-84 WMMWHE hewas in

/nacggw_@eller puiled his Dodge Stratus Into space #58 and jumped out of the driver's side doom
‘ conditcted a traffic stop.b:mﬁ_f W quMal instructions )
tofKeller who was still at the driver's side dog) ~WH€N—‘U€FENUNC% THE 3 W‘—’/

- T e
Keller had the strong odor of cannabis on his person and coming from Inside the vehicle. Keller was very narvous and
was upset about being stopped. Keller was wearing lose jeans and a baggy shirt that could easily conceal weapons so |

‘informed Keller | was going to conduct a pat down for weapons. As | began my pat down, Keller tensed up and his talking
became more nervous. | feared Keller was a flight risk so | placed Keller in handcuffs.

| asked Keller if he had a driver’s license and he said “yes". | asked Keller if his license was In his wallet and if | could

Wherefore, Declarant prays that a finding be made by a magisirate that probable cause exists to hold sald person for
preliminary hearing (if charges are a felony or gross misdemeanor) or. for trial (if charges are misdemeanor).

D. LOPEZ P#9806
Deciarant must sign all page(s} - Print Dg jfarant’s Name
with an original signature. é b ﬁi
Oeclarant's Signalura Pil
?vanzza (Rav, 1112) WORD 2010 {1) ORIGINAL - COURY

Y%
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137

—-= in the actual light that went into the socket area?

A There was an opening in the lens cover that allowed
the light to come out as clear white.
Q Okay, but so -- but the light was working?
The light was working.
And it was illuminated?

Yes.

o O

Okay. .Could you notice, was there even a brake
light on when he stopped?

A mmm.

4] All right. So then he -- you say at that point, he
exits the vehicle?
Yes.
And you say you immediately exit your vehicle?
Yes.

But he didn't -- but he didn't run away?

o R 0w

He didn"t get away.
Q You say he walked to the front of his vehicle, was

your testimony?

Q Where did he --
A He got out of his car and ran towards the back of

e ———— e ]

so0 he went Lo the trunk?

Q Okay,

A Towards the trunk.

Alse Heec

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

1y 33,% O.?.QLJ cnprges

138
1 ] Towards the trunk of his vehicle?
2 A Yes.
3 Q Okay. Okay, but it appeared to you that he was just

4| going into his trunk, correck?

5 A No. It appeared to me that he was trying to get

6| away from me.

? Q Buk you -- but the keys were == his keys were in his
8| trunk ~~ in the —-- in the trunk lock, correct?

9 A No.

10 Q All right. So after you secure Mr. Keller and

11| you're standing outside the vehicle -- outside of his vehicle,
12 ] okay, did you place him in —— did you place him in bandcuffs,

13} and then put him in your cruiser, and then go to the car, or
14| how did -- what was the chronology there?’
I walked him over to the front of my patrol vehicle,

16| I placed him in handcuffs, and that was about the time Officer

15 A

17| Hency was arriving. Then the gunshots taok place. I secured
18] him in the back of my patrol vehicle, I took cover by the side
19| of the car, and then I walked over towards his door, which was
20| still open.

21 Q Was

Okay. Now, at that peint, the door was open.

22| there == there was no interior light illuminated in the

23| vehicle, was there?
24 A I don't recall,
25 Q Okay. And this is at roughly 2:20 oxr so A.M. in the

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

89
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PEEffM

¢coming from inside of the vehicle and what is coming
off of my client?

A. While he was standing next to his door, and
I was up there next to him, while he was near the
driver's side door, and I was giving him
instructions, standing there, I could smell it
coming off of his clothes and from inside the
vehicle, coming from -- it was coming from 2
different directions.

Q. So you are able to differentiate between the
smell coming off of a person versus what was coming
from the vehicle, even though the 2 of them are in

He is not leaving the vicinity of the car

doorxr?
a, Correct.

Q. Then at that point vou said that you for

whatever reason decided to detain my client based
upon the fact that you believed that he may have had

a weapon on him?

A, I conducted a pat down, because he may have

fad weapons on him,.

Q. And you based that upon the fact that he was

driving at a high rate of speed?

A. No. I based -—-
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Yes.
And State's 16, what is this a photo of?

That's a photo of the interier as I'm standing at

the open passenger side door.

Q

Now, was there a certain area of the vehicle that

the search warrant that was about to proceed was focusing on?

A
Q

a

Yes,
And what area was that?

I was directed by the cfficers on scene that the

area of concern was the glove compartment area.

Q

Okay. And do you see that area here in this photeo

of this State's Exhibit 167

A

Q

Yes.

If you could please just point to that on the screen

that there's there on your left. And what was the state of

that area in particular when you arrived?

bkl A" T
had been removed and leluriIIIl

The gleove compartme

sitting on the floor beard, and the glove compartment area is

now exposed. \Ilil\\\\\\\

Q

3o the—forls of the search warrant that was about to

proceed you said was in this area?

A

Q

Yes.

And was there any particular thing about that area

that caused it to be the focus?

A

I was directed to a -- an area within the glove

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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compartment that appeared to have access to a space behind
the plastic paneling. '

Q Okay. First, showing you State's Exhibit 18. 1Is
this that same general area just a frontal view of it?

A Yes.

Q And now showing you State's 19, do you recognize
what's depicted here in this image?

A Yes.

Q And what is that?

A This is a view of the glove compartment from around
the area of the center console.

Q And State's 20, just a closer of that?

2 Yes.

Q S50 were you, as part of this search warrant, able to

recover the items through that hole there?

A No, I was not.
Q What was done? e e T L
e e
\\:\‘.I . . N
. A A separate piece of paneling was remcved to gain

access to that area.

f}l\l}l{l’]{.\l{]t‘,{l\l:

Q And where_was that paneling? e ——]
T — l'\l\..{\\lill

A The paneling was on the passenger side, the portion

of the vehicle that is in contact with the door when it et

e e
o

ClOS@au, e e
\\. Q Okay. 1I'm going te show you here State's Exhibit

17, De you receognize that area that you just spoke of in

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

N~
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Visits.htm Page 1 of 1

E?Qr\ & Tjj M B

Vists With Visitor Attorney
(Contact Only after May 2010, Non-Contact in Renovo)
1D Number : '0001804258', Start Date : "28-JAN-2017", End Date : "02-MAR-2017"

Inmate [Inmate First Offender ID ;Bocking|Booking|Start End Visit [RelationfVisitor Last |Visitor Visitor|
Last Name Begin |End Date/TimelDate/Time|Type|Type  |name First name{Midd!
Name Date :Date name
KELLERICHRISTOPHER|0001804258.28- - 27-Feb-17127-Feb- ILEGIATT  |FELICIANOQAMY -
B! ) JAN- 19:30:00 {17
2016 20:00:00
KELLERICHRISTOPHER[0001804258:28- - 01-Mar-1701-Mar- ILEGIATT  |FRIZZELL [KENNETHG
2 JAN- 13:00:00 {17
2016 13:30:00
file:///C:/Users/s10182m/AppData/Local/Temp/Templ_Visits.zip/Visits.htm 3/212017 Sy
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Exie TS A€

FELICIANQ LAW OFFICE, LLC

AMY A FELICIANO

ATTORNEY AT LAW

2421 Tech Center Ct., #100
Las Vegas, NV 89128
Phone: P | (702) 848-4869
Fax: F | (702) 977-8262
Email: amy@felicianolawoffice.com
www. felicianolawoffice.com

Invoice # 1 Date:

03/06/2017
Mr. Christopher Keller
¢/o Mrs. Nancy Graham
244 Molly Court
Las Vegas, NV 89183
06034-Keller
Y Typé . Date i . Nefes .. . .7 .- Quantity Rate Total.
Service 02/27/2017 Flat Fee for legal representation 1.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Expense  02/27/2017 Reimbursable expense; Fee expense for Investigator Al 1.00  $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Fuentes
Total $16,000.00
Payment (02/27/2017) -36,000.00
Credit Note -$10,000.00
Balance Owing $0.00
Detailed Statement of Account
Current Invoice
1 02/27/2017 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $0.00

03/06/2017: Judge refused substitution of attorney. Full refund of partial Flat Fee payment of $6000.
Remaining $10,000.00 written off.

Page 1 of 1
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retention. However, right after that I -- my husband and I
had, unfortunately, involuntary commit our 16-year-old son to
Spring Mountain Behavioral Center for mental illness.
At the same time, I started having seizures. 1 had
two grand mal seizures in February and was hospitalized in
Valley Hospital for over a week. I'm up to ten seizures now.
It came out of nowhere. After the grand mals and when I left
Valley, I suffered extreme aphasia, which I stutter, et
cetera. Long story short, by the time I was able to work
again and get back to normal, I contacted Mr. Keller's mother
again, as I was catching up with my contacts, my telephone
calls, et cetera, and his mother had graciously been waiting

for me teo contact her.

And this was on about the -— sorry, Judge.

THE COURT: Neo, that's okay. Just relax. We're
fine.

MS. FELICIANC: This is part of it. 26th of
February --

THE COURT: Okay.
MS. FELICIANO: -- and was retained at that time and
prepared the documents to enter into with Mr. Keller and his
mother, And that, Your Honor, is -- and Mr. Keller's mother
when we had -- when we spoke, informed me that she and her
husband had always been going to let him on his own, not hire

¢ounsel for him, but at this time, they wish to.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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F—

————— l.;lll;lxl\\ln\li"i]l(. . . ../J/I;.

And so she used =- and we listened to jail calls,
her savings account to retain me and so that's -- it's nmy
fault that I was not retained at the beginning of February
when Mr. Keller's mother first contacted me. Just to iet you
know, Your Honor, kind of where my position is at and why
everything was so last minute and, you know, let the parties
know as best I could, you know, once the payment clears and

things are firm. So thank you, Judge. R

) me COURT: " Ms. Feliciano, the concern I have here,
and it would play part in every case, is that when we have
certain dates that we put out there, everyone knows about
them, and I know that you probably researched this to find out
when a trial date was scheduled. You know nrmw in the
beginning prior to actually having an evidentiary hearing your
client was invoking -- well, Mr. Keller was invoking his right
to a speedy trial.

It's been -- I've dealt with a number of changes
here. Full Frizzell has come in. He's not the first attorney
to handle this matter. And so the concern that I have is that
you would even do thisg, even probakly as late as -— I mean as
early as February knowing when we have a trial date coming up.

And I appreciate you're trying to step in here to
assist Mr. -- I mean, Mr. XKeller, but I set trial dates

because I'm trying to move these cases. I have an

availability to do this case now, and I think when you accept

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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FELICIANO LAW OFFICE, LLC

AMY A FELICIANO

ATTORRAY AT LAW

March 6, 2017
VIA US MAIL

Christopher Keller, #0184258
Clark County Detention Center
330 South Casino Center

Las Vegas, Nevada §9101

Re:  State v. Keller
Legal representation documents

Dear Mr. Keller:

It was a pleasure speaking with you on the phone over the past week and meeting you in
person this morning. [ am incredibly saddened that Judge Kephart would not allow me to
substitute in as your attorney and grant our request for a short continuance to allow me to
effectively represent you. 1 hope that you receive effective assistance of counsel, due
process, and a fundamentally fair trial this week. I will be thinking of you and hoping for
the best outcome.

The legal system is broken. That is why I fight. But regardless of how long I have been
practicing and how many cases I have handled, it is always incredibly hard to watch legal
injustices happen to a person accused of a crime. An accused’s loss of constitutional rights
is beyond tragic. I can only hope that this week our system redeems itself and you receive
the constitutional rights you are entitled to.

I called your Mom after court and let her know what happened. I then refunded her
payment. Enclosed, please find a copy of the legal representation documents that I prepared
for your case,

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need additional
information. I wish you all the very best. Thank you.

I,

Amy AlfFeliciano, Esq.
FELICFANO LAW OFFICE, LLC

faaf

Enclosure(s)
cc: Mrs. Nancy Graham with enclosure(s)

2421 Tech Center Ct., #100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89128 T|(702) 848-4869 F|(702) 977-8262 E | amy@felicianolawoffice.com

57



Exipi7 #1S D

C-16-312717-1

COUNSEL:

Upon Court's inquiry, Defendant advised he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint against
the investigator. Further, Defendant advised he does not believe Mr. Frizzell is representing him the
way he wants. Further discussion regarding Defendant's issues with counsel and investigator.
COURT FURTHER ORDERED, Motion DENIED.

CALENDAR CALL:

State announced ready with 3 - 4 days for trial. Mr. Frizzell requested trial be continued as he has |
been preparing for the motion to suppress and has not been able to prepare for trial. Colloquy
regarding scheduling. COURT ORDERED, request to continue GRANTED; trial date VACATED and
RESET.

8/17/2016 8:30 AM PRE TRIAL CONFERENCE

9/14/2016 8:30 AM CALENDAR CALL

9/19/2016 10:00 AM JURY TRIAL

PRINT DATE: 04/17/2019 Page 26 of 59 Minutes Date:  February 18, 2016
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STATE BAR OF NEVADA

June 16, 2016

Christopher Keller, #1804285
Clark County Detention Center
330 8. Casino Center Boulevard
Las Vegas, NV 89101

RE:  Grievance / Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., and Michael Sanft, Esq.
Reference No, OBC16-0711

Dear Mr. Keller:

Please allow this letter to acknowledge receipt of your correspondence to
the State Bar of Nevada regarding attorneys Kenneth Frizzell and Michae] Sanft
in connection with your ongoing criminal case.

Court records show that State of Nevada vs. Christopher Keller, Case No.
C287724, remains pending in the Eighth Judicial District Court. A review of
court records and the information provided indicates that your grievance involves
issues best addressed in the appropriate court settings.

The Office of Bar Counsel and the disciplinary boards of the State Bar are
not substitutes for the court system. Accordingly, your allegations are, at this
time, more appropriately handled in the proper judicial forums. Therefore, no
further action shall be taken in this matter.

If a court makes any findings regarding this matter, please re-submit that
information for our reconsideration.

Phillip J . Pattee
Assistant Bar Counsel

59

3100 W. Charleston Blvd.
Suite 100

Las Vegas, NV 89102
phone 702.382.2200

tall rec 800.254.2797

fax 702.385.2878

9456 Double R Blvd,, Ste. B
Reno, NV 8§9521-5977
phone 773.329.4100
fx775.329.0522

www.nobar.org
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believe the defense had any witnesses besides maybe the
defendant himself.

THE COURT: Okay. So how =-- I guess, it's the young
lady that's seated right there?

MR. FRIZZELL: Yes, Your Honegr.

THE COURT: ALl right. How long -- was she
throughout the whole day of firsc day.

MR, DICKERSON: I believe she was here for two days,
Your Heoner.

THE COURT: Was she here for the opening statements?
tlere for any testimony? .

MR. FRIZZELL: msm,zmu here for the -- no, she was
here for the first day of jury selection.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, FRIZZELL: She was not here yesterday.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. PRIZZELL: My client's mother was here.
Chviously, she's not going to be a witness.

_-IHE-COBRT; _ Okay. All right. Who is the witness?

MR, FRIZZELL: Mary meLMMHU
?fij}ll

e
THE COURT: All zight.

MR. FRIZZELL: Mary Silva,
THE CQURT: Okay. Netwithstanding the fact that the
State was not put on notice of these witnesses, I'm going to

allow you ko call her if you chovse to. Buk you need to make

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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25 IMjM!&hlmwmu was the woman who hired me to come clean the house

=

her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, m:w.« going to be
offering. .

MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honar. I
actually just learned of her potential as a witness yesterday
evening from an e-mail, which I received.

THE COURT: Okay. So =--

MR. FRIZZELL: &And -~-

THE COURT: =-- she wasn't even somebody thal
defendant was telling you previously that we discussed before
we started the trial? .

MR. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: m‘nhaa_n x:os..:H.nSO:mvmthnmlﬁj

- . - //

‘THE COURT: Well, let me ask you this, I'm going to

Wwitness --

‘have her exit the courtroom, okay? All right. Ma'am, go
ahead and go out. T T T
(Witness exits the courtroom)
THE COURT: What's your proffer?
- MR. FRIZZELL: That she can testify that there was a
woman that was living there because she cleaned -- it was =--
cleaned the condominium unit. Cleaned -- had been cleaning --

like a cleaning lady for Unit F. And so that she was going to

be able to say that yes, a woman was living there, and she was

Jflfllillllllflfllillf!lzl:I||l|:‘. e

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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THE COURT: Okay. Well, I mean, I'm going to leave
it to Mr. Frizzell at this point in time to determine --
because we still have a Lrial going. We're still in the
middle of trial. There's still time. We're not dene with it.
You've made your record. You've made your record, Mr. Keller.
Mr. Frizzell, you and he need Lo discuss that and determine
whether ar not you're going to be in a position where you want
those witnesses to testify or not. So -- and then, Mr.
Frizzell, I'd do what you can to see what you can get -- get
~- see what you can find out,

. MR. FRIZZELL: And just sc that you understand, he
did just tell me all this: gave me this written down
yesterday.

THE DEFENDANT: This I gave you on Monday.

MR. FRIZZELL: And Your Henor, I just ==

THE DEFENDANT: [ gave him this on Monday, but T
told him that I want --

MR. FRIZZELL: Well, what he wanted from -- what he
wanted from this list he gave me was some documentation that
there wasn't going to be any way to get it in, and the
documents at least themselves. All he wanted was like
printouts of Registers of Actions on scme other —- some other
people and their case. And not only is that -- not only
during our discussion did I say ~~ did I tell him that I

thought that was -- that was irrelevant and there was other --

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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a better strategic way to handle that issue, I'm =- I'm
hearing actually -- like I said, just yesterday afternoan,
about I want to call all these people, some of which I have
absolutely no contact information for. Yes, my investigator,

Mr., Maston, I have certainly ways to contact him.

HE DEFENDANT;

1 have nurmbers for the :MnJWWMMMhlhv

MR. FRIZZELL: Okay. But if -- I mean, if he wants

witnesses to be called, I'm just letting Your Honor know that

“I'm just -- I just learned of who -- that he wanted to call

somebody yesterday, so there has been no notification to the
-~ to the State about that -—- .
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. FRIZZELL: -~ at all.
THE COURT: All right, that's fine, All right, get
the jury in.
THE MBRSHAL: All rise for the presence of the jury.
{(Within the presence of the jury)
THE COURT: Okay. We're back on the record in the
case of State of Nevada vs. Christopher Keller in C-312717.
Let the record reflect the presence of the defendant and his
counsel, as well) as State and their counsel.
(COURT CALLS ROLL OF THE JURY}
THE COURT: All members of the jury have answered

the call. Do the parties stipulate to the presence of the

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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community that --

THE COURT:

THE DEFENDANT: Well, they're character witnesses,
and then I -~

THE COURT: S0 you want -- you want to put your

=

I'm going to go on nﬁﬂl””lﬂdﬂ//

character into evidence?

THE DEE NT: Yes,
\MMM:@ te go -- I was going to go on the stand anyway.
Ch, ckay.
THE uwmmroyzq" And then ! had also wanted Lo -—- a
witness -- I wanted to call Mark Maston (phonetic), because he

== when he went Lo my house to investigate, I mean, the other
== the other person that was living Lhere aL the residence was
there, and still had access to the vehicle and all this stuff,
and he -- I mean, he's aware of that stuff, but I have no way
of like putting that -- I have no way of presenting that to
the Court without ~-- you know, I have no way of really
presenting w:m ~-- this evidence to the Court.

THE nocwe" Okay, well that's something you need to
discuss with your atLorney. Your albtorney's indicaking that

== I mean, you got the information, Mr. Frizzell.

MR. FRIZZELL: I v= I ==
THE COURT: And if in fact there's witnesses you
believe will assist you in your trial, then I'd suggest that
have

you probably Lry to do what you can to call them. But

- ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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you provided a witness list to the -- I mean, to the State?
MR. BUNNETT: Your Honor, we have not ==
MR. FRIZZELL: No, I just --
MR. BUNNETT: -- received a witness list. That -- I

mean, just based on what we're hearing today, my thoughts are

that, if these witnesses were to be presented, they sound

mostly like -- I mean, he mentioned upstanding members of the

community. If he puts on character evidence, Your Honor, I
feel like it's going te be our position that we're going to be
able to ask them about his eharactexr. And I Chink the
procedure how that's done is asking them, you know, have you
heard that the defendant has been convicted of a felony, or
that he's been --

THE COURT: Well, that's why I was asking whether ox
not -- that was his question, was he v:nnwsa.:wm character
inte issue,

MR. BUNNETT: So, I mean, I don't at this point
think -- if character witnesses are being presented, I don't
think we've been noticed, but I don't think our requested
remedy would be that he not be allowed to call those
witnesses.

THE COURT: Um-hum.
MR. BUNNETT: I mean, it would also sort of depend
on what evidence is proposed to be presented, but I mean, if

it's merely character evidence —-

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

¢

62




EX] T T A—C

@ =N D W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
29
21
22
23
24
25

{In the presence of the jury.}

THE COURT: Okay. This is continuation of jury
trial in case the State of Nevada versus Christopher Keller
in €-312717. 1I'd like Lhe record to reflect the presence of
the defendant, his counsel, district attorney and their
counsel and all members of the jury. Will the parties
stipulate to the presence of the jury?

MR. DICKERSON: State will stipulate, Your Honor.

MR. FRIZZELL: Defense stipulates.

THE oocwwh Okay. As we Look a break, State had
rested their case. Mr. Frizzell, did you wish to present any
evidence on be behalf of the defendant?

MR. FRIZZELL: Yes, Your Honor. Defense wishes to
call Officer Jacob Henry Lo the stand.

ﬁ:miﬂocmﬁu(:bxﬁtimiilli{illi!riklllé!ilfirllls
_OFFICER JACOB HENRY, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, -SWORN---—

e e e

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. Please

state your full name, spelling your first and last name for

the record, == s s e

%ﬂnisHﬂzmmm" Jacob Henry, J-a-c-o-b, H-e-n=-r-y.
e -
THE COURT: Your witness.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FRIZZELL:
Q Are you officer, detective? What is your ticle?

A Officer.
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Q Officer Henry, what do you do for w living?

a I'm a police officer with Las Vegas Metropolitan
Police Department.

Q And how long have you been so employed?

A Today's date, approximately three years.

Q And where were you -- were you -- where are you
stationed :o:w

A Northeast Area Command.

[¢] Okay. And were you stationed that command on

January 28th, 20167

A I was.

[+] On that date, were you called out for any reason?
A T was.

Q Okay. And what was that reason?

THE COURT: Why don't you be a litkle bit more
specific.
THE WITNESS: Yeah, I was on multiple calls that
night.
THE COURT: Okay,
BY MR. FRIZZELL:
Q In the evening, were you called to 265 North Lamb
Boulevard for any reason? .
A I was.
s} And do you recall why you were called to that

address?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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1| looking inside the glove box om the right side, there was a
2| -- a little compartment that was right there.
3 Q Okay. So can you describe what you =- you're
4| calling a compartment?
S A Yeah. So there was a little bit of a space beltween
6| the glove box and the actual like door and the frame of the
7| car.
8 Q Did you have to punch through something Lo get to
9| wherever it was you were ultimately attempting to go to?
10 A No.
11 MR. FRIZZELL: Court's indulgence.
12| BY MR. FRIZZELL:
13 Q At what point was there a search warrant request
14 made?
15 A I was able to reach my hand in the -- the l}ittle
16| compartmenc from inside the glove box, and I was able to feel
17| a pouch inside that -- that glove box compartmenk. Based on
18| my training and experience from manipulating the pouch, I
19| could feel something hard inside that fell like a firearm.
20 o] Okay.
21 A So we -- we stopped at that point and obtained a
22| search warrant... .. = . N
23 \\\zk m All right. Now, were to:.mMMMMﬂM1MIWMMMlMM“WMM(
24] this sunceurer
25 A I was.
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n j‘o
Q And was it operational?
h It vas.
Q Was it operational during the time that you're

describing to the jury?

A From my recollection, it was turned on, yes.

Q And was that body camera Ecotage a recording, te
the best of your knowledge?

A To the best of my knowledge, it was.

Q After this incident was concluded, what, if
anything, did you do with the body camera?

A I just did what we normally at the end of a shift,
which is take it off and plug it into the docking system ac

our area command and s¢ it can upload Lhe videos on to the

database.

Q And did you -- prior to Lhe end of the
investigation, did you inform the suspect that you had the
body cam onp and it was running?

A I do not recall specifically advising him that he
was -- he was being recorded by the body camera.

Q And so when you Wo back Lo the area command and you

put it in the docking station, what is the purpose of that?

A It uploads all the videos that were obtained
throughout the night into the ~- the massive database that we
have that -- that saves and stores video.

}/iul‘-‘ll{!lul.ll\\]'rl.l\\

Q< Okay. Where actwally dn your body do you recall

/l\\gm\n“”nn.wz..q TRANSCRIPT
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BY MR. FRIZZELL:
0 Did you transfer the footage to Lthe District
Attorney's Office?

A Physically, no. By me plugging it into the
database that they have access to as well, ik would have
transferred to them being able to obtain it. So I did not
physically walk it over here and hand the CD, no.

.\\..

e

Q Okay.
MR. FPRIZZELL: Court's indulgence. 1I'l]l pass Lhe
witpess, Your Henor.
THE COURT: Cross.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. BUNNETT:

Q So on direct examination, you kept referring to a
suspect. Is that suspect here this court today?

A He is.

Q Could you please point to him and identify an
article of clothing that he or she -- he's wearing?

A It looks like he's sitting right beside Lhe
attorney who was just gquesting me, and he's wearing a light
blue shirt.

MR. BUNNETT: And Your Honor, L['d ask that the
record reflect that the witness has identified the defendant.
THE COURT: It shall,

BY MR. BUNNETT:
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Q Okay. 8o you responded to help Officer Lopez?
A Correct.
Q And showing you --
(Pause in the proceedings)
BY MR. BUNNETT:
Q So I'm going to show you State's 6, That's what
the car looked like in the parking spot, right?

B Yes.

156

Q Okay. And I'm going to show you State's 8, That's

that license plate that was on the car, right?
A From what I could recall, yes.
Q Okay. 1I'm going to show you State's 20. That's

that hole that you were talking about, right?

A Correct. There's actually a little like piece that

was blocking wsmn. so it wasn't as obvious when you first

open it. But as I explained to the other attorney, once you

kind of touched it or tapped it, then it just it give away.

Q I mean, bub you didn't punch a hole in the side of

the glove box, did you?

A No.

Q So that was -- safe to assume that there was there

before you guys started searching the vehicle?
A Yes.
[o} And you found a lot of stuff in that car, didn't

you?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT |
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Christopher R Keller,
Petitioner,

VS.
State of Nevada,

Respondent,

FILED
SEP 05 2019

DISTRICT COURT %%

CLARK COI{NTY, NEVADA

Case No: A-19-800950-W
Department 19

ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

Y,

Petitioner filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction Relief) on

August 26, 2019. The Court has reviewed the Petition and has determined that a response would assist

the Court in determining whether Petitioner is illegally imprisoned and restrained of his/her liberty, and

good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,

answer or otherwise respond to the Petition and file a return in accordance with the provisions of NRS

34.360 to 34.830, inclusive.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that this matter shall be placed on this Court’s

™~

Calendar on the _ q day of

@,Hﬂ

o’clock for further proceedings.

BW““ bM , 20 ﬁ , at the hour of

Wkl KA

District Court Judge %

A-19-800950-W
OPWH
Order for Pelition for Writ of Habeas Corpu

[
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Electronically Filed
1M7/2020 9:29 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
» ...
STEVEN B. WOLFSON !

Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565

TALEEN R. PANDUKHT %
Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRIET COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258
Petitioner,
Vs CASENO: A-19-800950-W
THE STATE OF NEVADA, DEPTNO:  XIX
Respondent.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S PRO PER PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

DATE OF HEARING: April 16, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through TALEEN R. PANDUKHT, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and
hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

This Response is made and based upoil all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
/

I
I
1

Case Number: C-16-312717-1
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was

charged by way of Information with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlied Substance
(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Of Controlled
Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453.337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 5016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michae!l Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance”). '

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner. On May 4, 2016, Mr.
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (*“Second Continuance:”).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress. The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
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State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson v. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (“Third

Continuance”). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and
Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner.

On July 18, 2016, the State filed aNotice of Intent to Seek Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court that it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also
denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied
Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance”). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At C-';lendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance”). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017,

Both Petitioner and the State annoﬁnced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On Maych 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attempted to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms. Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to

bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information

I3
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was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance (Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the ;iury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information wa; subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that sentencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24,2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr, Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from-:Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count I- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in thé NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
(10) years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concur%‘ent with Count 1; as to Count 3 — a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5: as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)

months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner

4
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole e‘;ligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
8 to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count 8; for a total;aggregate sentence of LIFE in the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20) years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Cogltrolled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5,6and 7.

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018.

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State’s Response now follows. :

STATEMENT OF FACTS
On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las

Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a

4
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2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Officer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Officer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avoid him. Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.
Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s identification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, among which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating diréctions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in which the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the fact that $20
bills were folded in increments of $100, the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, $5 and $10 bills.
During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcuffs and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Officer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the shots fired. Additionavlly, Officer Lopez believed
that Petitioner would be a flight risk bas:d upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
nervousness, the fact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Defendant’s behavior while
Officer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the
driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s

3
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side vehicle in plain view, Based upon the :fehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leafy residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, based on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a

concealed compartment, Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel

a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and

obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items

" of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched

the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the g(;(ld bags C(;ntained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal sﬁbstance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althnether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the
substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight of 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for

Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had

7

74




O 00 ~I N Lt B W N

[T S T N T N T N T N S N T N T S T I T
00 ~1 O W B W = OO 0 NN R W N~ O

parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance was methampﬁetaminc. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also digcovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar‘ containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams. Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and elastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petitioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the -left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

ARGUMENT
I. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBS‘TANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

&
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(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court,

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s conviction and sentence,

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate

(a) Good cause for the petitioner’s fallure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and gppellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings. .. [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,
117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS
34.724(2)(a); see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars

if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for failure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not
obliged to consider them in post-conviction p£oceedings. Jomes v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975). |
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“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably
available at the time of default.” Clem v. St%te, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)
(emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good

causé[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State

' officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128

- Nev. 192, 275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show ““not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.’” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248,252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235,236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for pdst—conviction relief must set forth specific factuél
allegations that would entitle the petitioner tg relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] seeking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just
conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not
sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v, State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied’ when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the claim was made.”
Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive claims that could and
should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Illegal sentence; 2) Ground Two:

Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reli%.bility; 3) Ground Three: No exigency to search
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Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed to search Petitioner’s vehicle;
5) Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6) Ground Six: Destroyed or lost
body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony of Officer D. Lopez. Each of
these claims were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct appeal. Therefore, pursuant
to Evans, these issues were substantively waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them
carlier. Furthermore, Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS
34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause or prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and information needed to
raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct appeal, and Petitioner
does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of these issues at that
time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether the District Court
abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on the day trial was set
to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s pretrial
motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence pursuant to a search
warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls introduced by the State;
and 4) Whether there was cumulative error. Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to
ignore his procedural defaults because all of‘.the necessary facts and law were available for a
timely appeal and he has not alleged an impediment external to the defense prevented raising
these claims at the appropriate time. Therefore, these additional substantive claims are waived.

II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL DO NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove
he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063—64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865
P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for

counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have

11

78




o oo ~ [o3) w S~ W |3 —

o 3] [\ ] [\ ] [ (] | ] ™o [\ (] — [ —_— Pt — — — — —
0 ~1 v W AW —_— O O e 1 N R W N = O

been different. 466 U.S. at 687—88, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[TThere is no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant
makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was

ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1’;‘01 1, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P:3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon thg merits of the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render
reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711
(1978). This‘analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the éharge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n*19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).
/
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“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible optionz are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S, Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his meffectwe-assxstancc claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief, Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”

allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not
be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,
38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland

13
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does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosecution expert an equal and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt
about the State’s theory for a jury to convict. Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578
F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992). &

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United

States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-

prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v.-Statc, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114

(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or burying good arguments... in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess
reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every
‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argues that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineffective for the following reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not ap.Pealing the suppression hearing issues; 3) for not
using another investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;

4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
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or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the pena]t:;/ phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing. Because Petitioner fails to identify
which issues Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing, or how those issues
were supported by the record, Petitioner’s argument is a bare and naked allegation pursuant to
Hargrove and cannot entitled Petitioner to relief. In this case, trial counsel not only filed a
Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he conducted an evidentiary
hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Dariel Lopez testified. Exhibits were presented as
well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to Suppress. Therefore, trial
counsel appropriately raised the suppression issues and properly conducted the evidentiary
hearing, rendering Petitioner’s claim without merit.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel Jvas ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. However, Appellate counsel did raise several meritorious issues on appeal,
including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence from Petitioner’s residence.
The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did not abuse its discretion by
denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his condo through a search

warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides no evidence and only

makes bare and naked allegations that he was prejudiced. Such bare and naked allegations are
not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. Petitioner cannot
demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on
appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114. There is a strong presumption that
appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable

professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560 (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and naked allegations, he cannot overcome
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the strong presumption of appellate counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief is not
warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P22d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint

&
against the investigator. Counsel is expected to conduct legal and factual investigations when

developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,
9] Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,
472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations

or to make a reasonable decision that makes, particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.
Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,
104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more
favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and®investigation is both encouraged and common

practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators are

“subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableneﬁss in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counse!’s judgment.’” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1 145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate

investigations led to that conclusion.
1
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In this case, trial counsel was not ineffective for not using another investigator because
Petitioner was apparently dissatisfied with thjs one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular

“relationship” with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617

(1983). There is no requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel
is reasonably effective in his representation. See Id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is
not entitled to a particular relationship with his attorney’s investigator, who is either also court
appointed or who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. This
was a reasonable decision to make and does not amount to deficient representation under
Strickland.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. There is no requirement for a specific number of
visits every case necessitates, nor is that va basis for ineffective assistance of counsel.
Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel also communicates
with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars. “There are countless
ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys
would not defend a particular client in the same way.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct.
at 689. Thus, this claim is without merit and should be denied.

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testify that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, ang what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev, at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;
see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
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these alleged witnesses. It is unknown if trial counsel even had sufficient information to locate
these unnamed witnesses. A review of the record demonstrates that trial counsel was in fact
not given timely information about the witness Petitioner describes as having to wait so long
sheleft the trial. This witness, a woman named Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence

a few times, was discussed on the record on the fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what hapIpencd here. While you were probably walkin
down the hallway to come in, I was on the phone with the witness that you sai
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silvd, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- I said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4. p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court graciously allowed her

to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available fo the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's going to be offering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I actuallﬁ just learned of her

otential as a witness yesterday evening from an e-mail, which I received.

HE COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And --
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
R/r[tla{vious] that we discussed before we started the trial?

. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibilify of deciding if and when to object, and strategic
decisions such as which witnesses to call or‘not call are virtually unchallengeable. As such,
Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient perfo‘;mance and Petitioner’s claim therefore fails.
Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to cali

18
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witnesses during sentencing hearings unless ghey are convicted of First Degree Murder. The
applicable statutes are provided below.

NRS 176.015 is the applicable statute for sentencing hearings, which provides:

1. Sentence must be imposed without unreasonable delay. Pending sentence, the
court may commit the defendant or continue or alter the bail.

2. Before imposing sentence, the court shall:

a) Afford counsel an opportunity to speak on behalf of the defendant; and

b) Address the defendant personally and ask the defendant if:

1) The defendant wishes to make a statement in his or her own behalf and to
present any information in mitigation of punishment; and
(2) The defendant is a veteran or a member of the military. If the defendant meets
the qualifications of subsection 1 of NRS 176A.280, the court may, if
appropriate, assign the defendant to:

A Frogram of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280; or

I) If a program of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280 is not
available for the defendant, a program®of treatment established pursuant to NRS
176A.250 or section 20 of this act.

3. After hearing any statements presented pursuant to subsection 2 and before
imposing sentence, the court shalFl) afford the victim an opportunity to:

Ea% Appear personally, by counsel or by personal representative; and

b) Reasonably expréss any views concerning the crime, the person responsible,
the impact of the crime on the victim and the need for restitution.

NRS 175.552 is the applicable statute for First Degree Murder Penalty Hearings:

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, in every case in which there is
a finding that a defendant is guilty or guilty but mentally ill of murder of the first
degree, whether or not the death penalty is sought, the court shall conduct a
separate penalty hearing. The separate penalty hearing must be conducted as
follows:

(a) If the finding is made by a jury, the separate penalty hearing must be
conducted in the trial court before the trial jury, as soon as practicable.

(b) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is sought, the separate penalty hearing must
be conducted before a jury impaneled for that purpose, as soon as practicable.
(c) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is not sought, the separate penalty hearing
must be conducted as soon as practicable before the judge who conducted the
trial or who accepted the plea. )

2.In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has made
a finding that the defendant is intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice
of intent to seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the parties may by
stipulation waive the separate penalty hearing required in subsection 1. When
stipulating to such a waiver, the parties may also include an agreement to have
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the sentence, if any, imposed by the trial judge. Any stipulation pursuant to this
subsection must be in writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant’s
attorney, if any, and the prosecuting attorney.

3. During the hearing, evidence may be presented concerning aggravating and
mitigating circumstances relative to the offense, defendant or victim and on any
other matter which the court deems relevant to the sentence, whether or not the
evidence is ordinarily admissible. Evidence may be offered to refute hearsay
matters. No evidence which was secured in violation of the Constitution of the
United States or the Constitution of the State of Nevada may be introduced. The
State may introduce evidence of additional aggravating circumstances as set
forth in NRS 200.033, other than the aggravated nature of the offense itself, only
if it has been disclosed to the defendant before the commencement of the penalty
hearing.

4. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has found
the defendant to be intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice of intent to
seek the death penpalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the jury or the trial judge shall
determine whether the defendant should be sentenced to life with the possibility
of parole or life without the possibility of parole.

Therefore, counsel cannot be deemed ineffective for failing to call family and witnesses to
speak on his behalf at his sentencing as Petitioner was not entitled to this under Nevada law.
Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden
of proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
Conviction was affirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is
within the discretion of trial counsel and Will not be questioned unless it was a plainly
unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson
v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for

the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When def!;nse counsel does not have a solid case, the best
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.
Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Neither the State nor trial

counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was fully covered during the

€
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direct and cross-examination of Officer LopeZ’ testimony. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p.
44-147. Consequently, Petitioner’s claim fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process. However,
Petitioner does not allege that trial counsel was aware of any mental health or medication
issues. He does not even specify exactly vf'hat mental health history or medications he is
referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue. As such, his argument amounts to a
bare and naked allegation under Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the
record that demonstrate evidence of insanity or incompetence. Further, Petitioner fails to argue
how any mental health or medication issues,would have ultimately changed the outcome of
the instant case. Therefore, Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.

III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE
CLAIM FOR HABEAS RELIEF
The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev, 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

The State respectfully submits that cumulative error should not apply on post-conviction

review. Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1134,

1275 S. Ct. 980 (2007) (“a habeas petitioner cannot build a showing of prejudice on series of

errors, none of which would by itself meet the prejudice test.”). However, even if they could
[ =

be, it would be of no moment as there was no single instance of ineffective assistance in

Petitioner’s case. See United States v. Rivera, 900 F.2d 1462, 1471 (10th Cir. 1990) (“[A]

cumulative-error analysis should evaluate only the effect of matters determined to be error,
not the cumulative effect of non-errors.”).

Moreover, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in
evaluating a claim of cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity
and character of the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev,
1, 17,992 P.2d 845, 855 (2000).

7
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As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totality of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 344.29 grams of
methamphetamine, 33.92 grams of heroin, .537 grams of cocaing, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The quantity of methamphetamine
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the discovery of 1-inch by 1-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Further, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front of his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumsfances supported a finding of probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.

Order of Affirmance at page 3.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error

Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guilt is close, the quantity
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged" in determining
cumulative error). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court
AFFIRMED. :

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, Petitioner has failed to
establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable likelihood of a better
outcome at trial. Even if Petitioner had made such a showing, he has certainly failed to show
that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors was so prejudicial as to undermine this
Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Because the issue of guilt was not
close, and because Petitioner failed to sufﬁcié]ntly undermine confidence in the outcome of his
case, the State submits that Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error is without merit and that this
Court should deny the same.

IV. PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

NRS 34.770 determines when a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing. It reads:
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1. The judge or justice, upon review of the return, answer and all
supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether
an evidentiary hearing is required. A petitioner must not be
discharged or committed to the custody of a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held. _

2. If the judge or justice determines that the petitioner is not
entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing is not required, he
shall dismiss the petition without a hearing.

3. If the judge or justice determines that an evidentiary hearing
is required, he shall grant the gwrit and shall set a date for the
hearing.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without
expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v, State, 110 Nev.
1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231 (2002). A
defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported by specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605; see also Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
503, 686 P.2d at 225 (holding that “[a] defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled
to an evidentiary hearing on factual allegations belied or repelled by the record”). “A claim is

3
‘belied’ when it is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the
claim was made.” Mann, 118 Nev. at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). It is improper to hold an
evidentiary hearing simply to make a complete record. See State v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court,
121 Nev. 225, 234, 112 P.3d 1070, 1076 (2005) (“The district court considered itself the
‘equivalent of . . . the trial judge’ and consequently wanted ‘to make as complete a record as
possible.” This is an-incorrect basis for an evidentiary hearing.”).

Further, the United States Supreme Court has held that an evidentiary hearing is not
required simply because counsel’s actions are challenged as being unreasonable strategic
decisions. Harrington, 562 U.S. at 88, 131 S. Ct. at 788. Although courts may not indulge post
hoc rationalization for counsel’s decision making that contradicts the available evidence of
counsel’s actions, neither may they insist counsel confirm every aspect of the strategic basis
for his or her actions. Id. There is a “strong presumption” that counsel’s attention to certain

issues to the exclusion of others reflects trial tactics rather than “sheer neglect.” Id. (citing

Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 124 S. Ct. 1 (2003)). Strickland calls for an inquiry in the
‘€
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objective reasonableness of counsel’s performance, not counsel’s subjective state of mind. 466
U.S. 668, 688, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2065 (1994) (emphasis added).
Here, there is no reason to expand the record because Petitioner fails to present specific

factual allegations that would entitle him to refief. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at

605. Petitioner’s claims are either waived as not having been properly raised on direct appeal,
bare and naked allegations, or belied by the record. There is nothing else for an evidentiary
hearing to determine, and Petitioner gives no specific reasons for why an evidentiary hearing
would be needed. There is no need to expand the record because Petitioner’s claims are
meritless and can be disposed of on the existing record. Therefore, an evidentiary hearing is

not warranted in this matter.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully requests that this Court order Defendant’s
Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) be denied.

DATED this ' lﬂ‘,'/h day of January, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0871 56

TAFEENR. PAND
Chief Deputy Dist
Nevada Bar #005

o~
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this ( ‘ i day of

January, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

TRP/cg/L2

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER

1200 Prison Rd.

Lovelock, NV, 89419
BY wam ZMM

C. Garcia i

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
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Electronically Filed
1/21/2020 11:54 AM
Steven D. Grierson

: CLERK OF THE CO
RSPN " &.‘J‘ M

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565 .
TALEEN R. PANDUKHT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258
Petitioner,
vs CASENO:  A-19-800950-W
THE STATE OF NEVADA, DEPTNO:  XIX
Respondent.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S PRO PER PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

DATE OF HEARING: December 9, 2019
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through TALEEN R. PANDUKHT, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and
hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

This Response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

/
1
/!
/

Case Number: A-19-800950-W
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was

charged by way of Information with Count§ 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlled Substance
(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Of Controlled
Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453,337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and.r_9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Fircarm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NR§r202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 2016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michael Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance™).

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. .On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner, On May 4, 2016, Mr,
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (*“Second Continuance™).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress, The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
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State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson V. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (“Third

Continuance”). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and
Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner. '

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Not@ce of Intent to Seek Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 20'16, the State also informed the Court ﬂ'ilt it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also
denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied
Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance”). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Calendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance”). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017.

Both Petitioner and the State announced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On March 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attemp:ed to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms. Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to

bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information
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was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance (Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the*jury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information was subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that sentencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, _Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count 1- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in the NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
(10) years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 — a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to 2 minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5; as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)

months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner

4
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole evligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
8 to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count 8; for a total:aggregate sentence of LIFE in the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20) years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a MOtiO;l for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Controlled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5,6and 7. ‘

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018.

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State’s Response now follows. )

STATEMENT OF FACTS
On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las

Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a

97




O 00 =] N W N

[\ TR % TR G T NG T 6 B N T N N N R N I T e e T R R R ]
00 ~1 O W R W N = OO e NI N R W N~ O

2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be db:riven by Petitioner. Officer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Officer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avoid him, Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.
Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s identification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, amoﬁg which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating directjons. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in whicﬁ the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the fact that $20
bills were folded in increments of $100, the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, $5 and $10 bills.
During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcuffs and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Officer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the fshots fired. Additionally, Officer Lopez believed
that Petitioner would be a flight risk based upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
nervousness, the fact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Defendant’s behavior while
Officer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the

driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s
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side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the vehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leafy residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as anothgr large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, b;sed on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a
concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel
a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and
obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items
of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched
the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gdid bags contained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althn'ether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the
substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight of 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for

Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
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parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance vs‘/as methamphetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon,testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams. Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and elastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petiltlioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. .While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

ARGUMENT
I.  PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.,810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:
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(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s convietion and sentence, .

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate:

(a) Good cause for the petitioner’s failure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and )

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claims.that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,

117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS

34.724(2)(a); see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
) a

877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars
if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for failure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not

obliged to consider them in post-conviction proceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975).
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“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably
available at the time of default.” Clem v. Staﬁte, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)
(emphasis added). The Court continued, “e;ppcllants cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State
officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128
Nev. 192, 275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.’” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248,252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual

allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] seeking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just
conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not
sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P:2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied” when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the claim was made.”
Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive claims that could and
should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Illegal sentence; 2) Ground Two:

Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reliidbility; 3) Ground Three: No exigency to search

10
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Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed to search Petitioner’s vehicle;
5) Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6) Ground Six: Destroyed or lost
body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony of Officer D. Lopez. Each of
these claims were available at the time Petitiﬁoner filed his direct appeal. Therefore, pursuant
to Evans, these issues were substantively waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them
earlier. Furthermore, Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS
34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause pr prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and information needed to
raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct appeal, and Petitioner
does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of these issues at that
time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether the District Court
abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on the day trial was set
to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s pretrial
motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence pursuant to a search
warrant; 3} Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls introduced by the State;
and 4) Whether there was cumulative error, Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to
ignore his procedural defaults because all of the necessary facts and law were available for a
timely appeal and he has not alleged an impediment external to the defense prevented raising
these claims at the appropriate time. Therefore, these additional substantive claims are waived.

II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL DO NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove
he was denied “reasonably effective assistance™ of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063-64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865
P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standz‘ard of reasonableness, and second, that but for

counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have

11
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been different. 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden. Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[There is no reason for a court deciding gn ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant

makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was
ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel
does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See
3.

Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective

assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711

(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interegts of his client by attempting a useless charade.”
United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984),

1
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“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible optionss are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S;Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability
sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068). |

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his ingffective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must

be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”

allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not
be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland

13

105




o 00 3 N L BN

[\:)MMN[\)M[\)MM'—"—‘#-—-.—-—-—»—-;—-.—-
o ~1 O n B WD = O O N L R W NN — O

does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosecution expert an equal and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt

about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.” Harrington v. Richter, 131 8. Ct. 770, 791, 578

F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v, State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992).

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United
States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104
S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-
prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114

(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or buryiné good arguments... in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess
reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every
‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314. ’

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argures that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineffective for the following reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not appealing the suppression hearing issues; 3) for not
using another investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;

4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena

14
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or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counse! was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing. Because Petitioner fails to identify
which issues Petitioner relayed to him priorsto the suppression hearing, or how those issues
were supported by the record, Petitioner’s argument is a bare and naked allegation pursuant to
Hargrove and cannot entitled Petitioner to relief. In this case, trial counsel not only filed a
Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he conducted an evidentiary
hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Daniel Lopez testified. Exhibits were presented as
well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to Suppress. Therefore, trial
counsel appropriately raised the suppression issues and properly conducted the evidentiary
hearing, rendering Petitioner’s claim without merit.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel was ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. However, Appellate counsel did raise several meritorious issues on appeal,
including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence from Petitioner’s residence.
The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did not abuse its discretion by

denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his condo through a search

warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides no evidence and only
makes bare and naked allegations that he wa: prejudiced. Such bare and naked allegations are
not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225, Petitioner cannot
demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on
appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114. There is a strong presumption that
appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable

professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560 (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and naked allegations, he cannot overcome

15
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the strong presumption of appellate counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief is not
warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P:2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel is expectedgzto conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,
91 Nev, at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,
472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations

or to make a reasonable decision that makes, particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.
Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,
104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not

adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more

favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and-investigation is both encouraged and common

practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators are

“subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.’” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court iﬁ Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply bgcause they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate
investigations led to that conclusion.

/
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In this case, trial counsel was not ineffective for not using another investigator because
Petitioner was apparently dissatisfied with this one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular

“relationship” with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617

(1983). There is no requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel
is reasonably effective in his representation. See Id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is
not entitled to a particular relationship with hgs attorney’s investigator, who is either also court ‘
appointed or who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. This
was a reasonable decision to make and does not amount to deficient representation under
Strickland.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. There is no requirement for a specific number of
visits every case necessitates, nor is that a basis for ineffective assistance of counsel.
Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel also communicates
with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars. “There are countless
ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys
would not defend a particular client in the sa;;w way.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct.
at 689. Thus, this claim is without merit and should be denied.

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testify that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;

sec also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953, Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
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these alleged witnesses. It is unknown if trial counsel even had sufficient information to locate
these unnamed witnesses. A review of the record demonstrates that trial counsel was in fact
not given timely information about the witness Petitioner describes as having to wait so long
she left the trial. This witness, a woman named Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence

a few times, was discussed on the record on the fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what happened here. While you were probably waIking
down the hallway to come in, I was on the phone with the witness that you sai
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silva, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- I said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court graciously allowed her

to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's going to be offering,
MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I actuallﬁ just learned of her
otential as a witness yesterday evening from an e-mail, which I received.

E COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And -- :
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
K/r&viousl that we discussed before we started the trial?

. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel
called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, and strategic

decisions such as which witnesses to call ornot call are virtually unchallengeable. As such,

Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient performance and Petitioner’s claim therefore fails.
Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and

witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call
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witnesses during sentencing hearings unless they are convicted of First Degree Murder. The

applicable statutes are provided below.

NRS 176.015 is the applicable statute for sentencing hearings, which provides:

1. Sentence must be imposed without unreasonable delay. Pending sentence, the
court may commit the defendant or continue or alter the bail.

2. Before imposing sentence, the court, shall:

a} Afford counsel an opportunity to speak on behalf of the defendant; and
b) Address the defendant personally and ask the defendant if:

1) The defendant wishes to make a statement in his or her own behalf and to
present any information in mitigation of punishment; and

(2) The defendant is a veteran or a member of the military. If the defendant meets
the qualifications of subsection 1 of NRS 176A.280, the court may, if
appropriate, assign the defendant to:

g A Frogram of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280; or

IT) If a program of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280 is not
available for the defendant, a program®of treatment established pursuant to NRS
176A.250 or section 20 of this act.

3. After hearing any statements presented pursuant to subsection 2 and before
imposing sentence, the court shaH afford the victim an opportunity to:

a) Appear personally, by counsel or by personal representative; and

b) Reasonably express any views concerning the crime, the person responsible,
the impact of the crime on the victim and the need for restitution.

NRS 175.552 is the applicable statute for First Degree Murder Penalty Hearings:

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, in every case in which there is
a finding that a defendant is guilty or guilty but mentally ill of murder of the first
degree, whether or not the death penalty is sought, the court shall conduct a
separate penalty hearing. The separate penalty hearing must be conducted as
follows:

(a) If the finding is made by a jury, the separate penalty hearing must be
conducted in the trial court before the trial jury, as soon as practicable.

(b) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is sought, the separate penalty hearing must
be conducted before a jury impaneled for that purpose, as soon as practicable.
(c) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is not sought, the separate penalty hearing
must be conducted as soon as practicable before the judge who conducted the
trial or who accepted the plea.

2. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has made
a finding that the defendant is intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice
of intent to seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the parties may by
stipulation waive the separate penalty hearing required in subsection 1. When
stipulating to such a waiver, the parties may also include an agreement to have
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the sentence, if any, imposed by the trial judge. Any stipulation pursuant to this
subsection must be in writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant's
attorney, if any, and the prosecuting attorney.

3. During the hearing, evidence may be presented concerning aggravating and
mitigating circumstances relative to the offense, defendant or victim and on any
other matter which the court deems relevant to the sentence, whether or not the
evidence is ordinarily admissible. Evidence may be offered to refute hearsay
matters. No evidence which was secuted in violation of the Constitution of the
United States or the Constitution of the State of Nevada may be introduced. The
State may introduce evidence of additional aggravating circumstances as set
forth in NRS 200.033, other than the aggravated nature of the offense itself, only
if it has been disclosed to the defendant before the commencement of the penalty
hearing.

4. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has found
the defendant to be intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice of intent to
seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the jury or the trial judge shall
determine whether the defendant should be sentenced to life with the possibility
of parole or life without the possibility of parole.

Therefore, counsel cannot be deemed ineffective for failing to call family and witnesses to
speak on his behalf at his sentencing as Petitioner was not entitled to this under Nevada law.
Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden
of proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
Conviction was affirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is
within the discretion of trial counsel and will not be questioned unless it was a plainly
unreasonable decision, See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson
v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for

the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When defense counsel does not have a solid case, the best
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.

Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Neither the State nor trial

counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was fully covered during the
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direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p.

44-147. Consequently, Petitioner’s claim fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process. However,
Petitioner does not allege that trial counsel swas aware of any mental health or medication
issues. He does not even specify exactly what mental health history or medications he is
referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue. As such, his argument amounts to a
bare and naked allegation under Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the
record that demonstrate evidence of insanity or incompetence. Further, Petitioner fails to argue
how any mental health or medication issues would have ultimately changed the outcome of
the instant case. Therefore, Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.

III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE
CLAIM FOR HABEAS RELIEF

The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of
counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. Sta;e, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).
The State respectfully submits that cumulative error should not apply on post-conviction

review. Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1134,

1275 S. Ct. 980 (2007) (“a habeas petitioner cannot build a showing of prejudice on series of
errors, none of which would by itself meet the prejudice test.”). However, even if they could
be, it would be of no moment as there was no single instance of ineffective assistance in

Petitioner’s case. See United States v. Rivera, 900 F.2d 1462, 1471 (10th Cir. 1990) (“[A]

cumulative-error analysis should evaluate only the effect of matters determined to be error,
not the cumulative effect of non-errors.”).
Moreover, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in

evaluating a claim of cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity

and character of the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev.
1, 17,992 P.2d 845, 855 (2000).
/"
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As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totality of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 344.29 grams of
methamphetamine, 33.92 grams of heroin, .537 grams of cocaine, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The quantity of methamphetamine
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the discovery of I-inch by 1-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Burther, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front of his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding of probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.

Order of Affirmance at page 5.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error

Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guilt is close, the quantity
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged" in determining
%Fr%lllllgﬁv&)error). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, Petitioner has failed to
establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable likelihood of a better
outcome at trial. Even if Petitioner had made such a showing, he has certainly failed to show
that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors was so prejudicial as to undermine this
Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Because the issue of guilt was not
close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine confidence in the outcome of his
case, the State submits that Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error is without merit and that this

Court should deny the same.

PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

NRS 34.770 determines when a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing. It reads:
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1. The judge or justice, upon review of the return, answer and all
supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether
an evidentiary hearing is required. A petitioner must not be
discharged or committed to the custody o?a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held.

2. 'If the judge or justice determines that the petitioner is not
entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing is not required, he
shall dismiss the petition without a hearing.

3. If the judge or justice deterfnines that an evidentiary hearing
is required, he shall grant the writ and shall set a date for the
hearing.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without
expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.

1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231 (2002). A

defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported by specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605; see also Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
503, 686 P.2d at 225 (holding that “[a] defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled
to an evidentiary hearing on factual allegatioﬁs belied or repelled by the record™). “A claim is
‘belied’ when it is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the
claim was made.” Mann, 118 Nev. at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). It is improper to hold an
evidentiary hearing simply to make a comﬁletc record. See State v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court,

121 Nev. 225, 234, 112 P.3d 1070, 1076 (212005) (“The district court considered itself the

‘equivalent of . . . the trial judge’ and consequently wanted ‘to make as complete a record as
possible.” This is an incorrect basis for an evidentiary hearing.”).

Further, the United States Supreme Court has held that an evidentiary hearing is not
required simply because counsel’s actions are challenged as being unreasonable strategic
decisions. Harrington, 562 U.S. at 88, 131 S. Ct. at 788. Although courts may not indulge post
hoc rationalization for counsel’s decision making that contradicts the available evidence of
counsel’s actions, neither may they insist counsel confirm every aspect of the strategic basis
for his or her actions. Id. There is a “strong presumption” that counsel’s attention to certain
issues to the exclusion of others reflects trial tactics rather than “sheer neglect.” Id. (citing

v
Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 124 S. Ct. 1 (2003)). Strickland calls for an inquiry in the
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objective reasonableness of counsel’s performance, not counsel’s subjective state of mind. 466
U.S. 668, 688, 104 S, Ct. 2052, 2065 (1994) (emphasis added).

Here, there is no reason to expand the record because Petitioner fails to present specific
factual allegations that would entitle him to relief. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 8385 P.2d at
605. Petitioner’s claims are either waived as fiot having been properly raised on direct appeal,
bare and naked allegations, or belied by the record. There is nothing else for an evidentiary
hearing to determine, and Petitioner gives no specific reasons for why an evidentiary hearing
would be needed. There is no need to expand the record because Petitioner’s claims are
meritless and can be disposed of on the existing record. Therefore, an evidentiary hearing is
not warranted in this matter.

CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully requests that this Court order Defendant’s

Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) be denied.
DATED this al&\’ day of January, 2020.
Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

Chlef De uty Distf
Nevada Bar #0053
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

J
I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this 2 }S day of

January, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

TRP/cg/L2

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER

1200 Prison Rd,

Lovelock, NV, 89419

BY

C. Garcia
Secretary t;or the District Attorney's Office
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. STATE BAR OF NEVADA

December 19, 2017

Christopher Keller, #81840

Ely State Prison
PO Box 1989
3100 W. Charleseon Blvd.
Ely, NV 89301 Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89102
phone 702.382.2200
;J::?\gljlr:gaor:rt ' coll frec 800.254.2797
(2 702.385.2878
Las Vegas, NV 89183
Sent via email only: mrsnancygraham@cox.net 9456 Double R Bivd., Ste. B
« Reno, NV 89521-5577
phone 775.329.4100
RE: Fee Dispute No. FD17-117: Keller/Graham v. Feliciano f2 775.329.0522
Dear Petitioners Keller/Graham: wiore.nvbar.org

This letter acknowledges receipt of your completed Petitionér's Agreement for Arbitration of Fee
o Dispute. We have opened a file in this matter and assigned a case number (please refer to it in
i the future). Additionally, a copy of your Petition has been forwarded to the Respondent for a
reply.

Pursuant to the Rules of Procedure for the Fee Dispute Arbitration Committee, the matter will
automatically proceed to mediation. Once we are in receipt of the Respondent’s reply, a copy will
be provided to you and the matter will be assigned to a mediator to assist in resolving your claim.
The process for obtaining a response and assigning a mediator can take up to a month to
complete.

G The Respondent will be provided with a Respondent’s Agreement for Arbitration of Fee Dispute;
| however submission of this agreement is voluntary. If the Respondent’s Agreement is receivaed
and the mediation attempt is unsuccessful, the matter will proceed onto binding arbitration. If
the Respondent’s Agreement is not submitted and mediation is not successful, the claim wiil then
be closed.

o The entire fee dispute procedure can take approximately 6 to 8 months to complete. For more

information about the fee dispute process, please review the Rules of Procedure for Fee Dispute
. Arbitration and/or the Fee Dispute Committee wehpage on www.nvbar.org/feedispute.

Sincerely,

i Britz
Client Prote
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02/16/2016,

02/17/2016

03/02/2016

03/04/2016,

03/24/2016

03/24/2016

03/29/2016

04/25/2016

06/01/2016

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CASE SUMMARY
CASE No. C-16-312717-1

EVENTS
5;] Criminal Bindover Packet Las Vegas Justice Court

'Ej Information
Information

IEJ Reporters Transcript

EJ Reporters Transeript

’@ Notice

Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual Criminal

Ej Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses
Notice of Witnesses

@ Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses
Notice of Expert Witnesses

‘- Amended Information
Amended Information

Motion

Motion to Reduce Bail

e
T e e

06/10/2016] & Motion to Suppress \\.

06/13/2016

Defendant's Motion to Supress
S

-

'ﬁj Motion to Dismiss Counsel *
Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counse

06/16/2016

06/17/2016

07/18/2014)

08/10/2016

08/12/2016

08/18/2016

'& Receipt of Copy
Receipt of Copy

‘& Opposition
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Suppress

' Notice

Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual Criminal

& Motion

Motion to Withdraw as Counsel

—

&3 Certificate of Mailing
Certificate of Mailing

@ Order

Alternative Counsel

PAGE 2 OF 16
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Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings Preliminary Hearing - 2/16/2016

Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings Preliminary Hearing 2/16/16

Order Denying Defendant's Motion to Suppress and Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint

Printed on 05/23/2019 at 11:24 AM



. EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

. CASE SUMMARY
CASE No. C-16-312717-1

08/24/2017 " Notice of Appeal (criminal)
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Notice of Appeal

08/25/2017] ¥ Case Appeal Statement

Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Case Appeal Statement

10/05/2017 Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Recorders Rough Draft Transeript of Proceeding Sentencing

11/13/2017 '@ Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

Recorders Rough Drafi Transcripf of Hearing Re: 3/6/17 - Jury Trial - Day 1 - Partial Transcript (Excludes Jury Voir
Dire)

11/13/2017, Recorders Transcript of Hearing

Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

Recorders Rough Draft Transcript of Hearing Re: 3/7/17 - Jury Trial - Day 2 - Partial Transcript (Excludes Juiy Voir
Dire)

11/13/2017] ) Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert )
Recorders Rough Draft Transcript of Hearing Re: 3/10/17 - Jury Trial - Day 5

11/13/2017 Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Transcript of Proceedings Rough Draft Transcript of Jury Trial- Day 4, 3/9/17

11/13/2017, E Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Transcript of Proceedings Rough Draft Transcript of Jury Trial- Day 3. 3/8/17

11A4/2017 ﬁNotice of Motion \

\ Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher )obert

1171472017 T Motion for Appointment of Attorney
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Rober
Motion for Appointment of Counsel

117142017 B Motion to Withdraw As Counse!
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record or in the Alternative, Request for Records/ Court Case Documents

1172972017 T Notice of Change of Hearing
Notice of Change of Hearing

12/12/2017 @ Amended Judgment of Conviction
AMENDED JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (JURY TRIAL)

03/22/2018] '3 Motion for Appointment
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

PAGE4 OF 16 Printed on 05/23/2019 at 11:24 AM
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. EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

. CASE SUMMARY
CASE No. C-16-312717-1

Motion for the Appointment of Counssel and Motion io Dismiss Atforney on Record

04/11/2018] %) Order

Filed By: Plaintilf State of Nevada
Order Granting Defendant's Motion for the Appointment of Counsel; Order Denying Defendani’s Request for
Evidentiary Hearing

04/13/2018] &) Opposition

Filed By: Plaintiff State of Nevada
State's Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Distniss Attorney of Record

05/10/2018 E Order Denying
Order Denying Defendant's Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record

1171472018 QINv Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment - Affirmed
Nevada Supreme Court Clerk's Certificate/Remittitur Judgment - Affirmed

123172018 /&Y Motion
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel of Record or in the Alternative Request for Records/Court Case Document

12/31/2018 @ Notice of Motion
Filed By: Defendant Keller. Christopher Robert

020172019 T Order Granting
Filed By: Plaintiff State of Nevadla

Order Granting Petittioner's Pro Per Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel of Record. Or In the Alternative, Request for
Records/Court Case Document

0410372019 @Y Motion

Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Request for Records/Cowrt Case Documents

04/03/2019 3] Notice of Motion
Filed By: Defendant Keller. Christopher Robert

04/03/2019 1 Motion to Compel
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christophetr Robert

DISPOSITIONS
02/18/2016] Plea (Judicial Officer: Kephart, William D.)
1. TRAFFICKING IN CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
Not Guilty
PCN: 0025604569 Sequence:

2. TRAFFICKING IN CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
Not Guilty
PCN: Sequence:

3. POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE, MARIJUANA
Not Guilty
PCN: Sequence:

4. POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE WITH INTENT TO SELL
Not Guilty

PAGES5OF 16 Printed on (15/23/201% at 11:24 AM
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
PARKER BROOKS

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #011927

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO.
_vs_
DEPT NO.

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Defendant.

ORDER FOR PRODUCTION OF INMATE
CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840

DATE OF HEARING: April 23; 2020

TIME OF HEARING: 08:30 AM

TO: NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS; and

JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada:
Upon the ex parte application of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, by STEVEN

B. WOLFSON, District Aﬁomey, through PARKER BROOKS, Deputy District Attorney, and

TO:

good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
shall be, and is, hereby directed to produce CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, Defendant
in Case Number A-19-800950-W, wherein THE STATE OF MV@A is the Plaintiff,
inasmuch as the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER is currently incarcerated in the
NEVADA DEPARTMENT dF CORRECTIONS located in Clark County, Nevada, and his

presence will be required in Las Vegas, Nevada, commencing on April 23, 2020, at the hour

Case Number: A-19-800950-W
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Steven D. Grierson
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of 68:30 o'clock AM and continuing until completion of the prosecution's case against the said
Defendant.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County,
Nevada, shall accept and retain custody of the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER. in
the Clark County Detention Center, Las Vegas, Nevada, pending completion of said matter in
Clark County, or until the further Order of this Court; or in the alternative shall make all
arrangements for the transportation of the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER to and
from the Nevada Department of Corrections facility which are necessary to insure the
CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER's appearance in Clark County pending completion of
said matter, or until further Olidcr of this Court.

DATED this _/&" day of March, 2020. Iy

ISTRICT JUD

V)

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District
Nevada B

W;\20162016F\01 4300 6F01430-OPI{KELLER _ CHRISTOPHER)-001.DOCX
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Electronically Filed
05/20/2020

Pz S i

CLERK OF THE COURT

Disttier Conexr
AR Doy, N

NAME, @\nﬁx@‘r@{\»ﬁ- Keller &gl%%

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

21

23
24
' 25
26
27

28

B ARRATN

Vg

' CASENO.

ﬁ'“i - ﬁf}{)i’\{ o
NAME, STRTE 0F NEvRDR ‘i:va; Ni‘ 207\

[
Responoent  Defendamt(s). —x

COMES NOW, [ h#:stopnee Kelef, in PRO PER and herein above respectfully

Moves this Honorable Court foral] e dRides T The  CAGE AROVE YD Re

helo ovee vipeo 4 that Kelleg's Pruseal peesence 2E waiueD.

The above is made and based on the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities.

RECGEIVED
MAY 0 5 200
m&rm&mgm'
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

21

24
25
26
27

28

I MEMoZANDEM  0F  Dowgts AND BuTH? (Tigs
F\ﬁnﬁj@ % %@_@f‘\’i:} AT Lovelogit (‘;ﬁé&c{ungm CENIER,
BND  PYones The TRANGEER. Chunsie, Kellth ©outs and  poopl
EXQoSuRE 1D The covip -9 ViRuws, IT will reeate edfs work
Soe oANicers Anp Expenges Lot the soate . ik ace Al
J
l =
| B [
X n{}{-ﬁh .
Dated this 2" dayof __[1p2: | , 2020,
BY: £ ’;{EJ\::?; /’{’;{_,,VXW”
; (?:5’3;‘?; fe’gg/i'?t;’{ R Aells
3
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10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

24
25
26
27

28

ERTIFICATE OF SERVI Y MAIL
Pursuant to NRCP Rute 5 (b), I bereby certify that I am the Petitioner/Defendant named herein
and that on this ﬁowday of A Pr2 ] ,2020Q , 1 mailed a true and correct copy of this

foregoing ___\1pii0n QB(L ARGt to the following;

Stevew DQ'QEQQ’N
700 Levg Ave 374

(65 e s WA TEC

BY: /%7& ] W\’

6-7/1:41&}!7;&{& { Jeellee
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10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

23
24
25
26
27

28

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239b.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document,

moho Lo preenha

(Title of Document)
Filed in case number: .

J Document does not contain the social security number of any person
Or
0 Document contains the social security number of a person as required by:

O A Specific state or federal law, to wit

Or

o For the administration of a public program
Or

0 For an application for a federal or state grant
Or

o Confidential Family Court Information Sheet
(NRS 125.130, NRS 125.230, and NRS 125b.055)

pate:Y-29-2020 g

/’/, /1'»3 [ fn —

4

- (Signature)

(hogdoeee £, Kells

(Print Name)

_PRO S[

(Attorney for)
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Electronically Filed
09/16/2020 11:20 AN

CLERK OF THE COURT

OPI1

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
MICHAEL R. DICKERSON
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013476

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
CASENO. A-19-800950-W

DEPT NO. XIX

-Vs-

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Defendant,

ORDER FOR PRODUCTION VIA VIDEOQO CONFERENCE
OF INMATE CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840

DATE OF HEARING: October 1, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 AM

TO: NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS; and

TO: JOSEPH LOMBARDQO, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada:
Upon the ex parte application of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, by STEVEN

B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through MICHAEL R. DICKERSON, Chief Deputy
District Attorney, and good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
shall be, and is, hereby directed to produce CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER for purposes
of appearing via video conference, Defendant in Case Number A-19-800950-W, wherein THE
STATE OF NEVADA is the Plaintiff, inasmuch as the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT
KELLER is currently incarcerated in the NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

located in Clark County, Nevada, and his presence via video conference will be required in
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Las Vegas, Nevada, commencing on October 1, 2020, at the hour of 08:30 o'clock AM and
continuing until completion of the prosecution's case against the said Defendant.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County,
Nevada, and the NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS shall be, and is, hereby
directed to produce CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER for purposes of appearing via video
conference on the above date and time, and until completion of said matter, or until further
Order of this Court.

DATED this day of September, Mmis 16th day of September, 2020

el fAES—

DISTRICT JUDGE

1A9 0B5 9ED6 FECO
William D. Kephart
District Court Judge

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ MICHAEL R. DICKERSON

MICHAEL R. DICKERSON
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013476

Im/L-2

2

WCLARKCOUNTYDA.NET\CRMCASE2' 201650484 1342016048 1 3C-OPI(CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER)-001.DOCX
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
VS, DEPT. NO. Department 19

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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| Chophe 2. (el IO

:/In Propria Persona
Post Office Box 650 (HDSP) /
Indian Spnngs Nevada. 89018

—~

DISTRICT COURT
_ClaRK. COUNTY, NEVADA
(\\n@sjmohm 2, Kellee 3
_Plant 1FF g A-19- 8000\50 \:\/
. , Case N
Yoate of NEvaDR ) Dm; 1%
DECEI0ANT. % opt. No- 2 Hearing
)) Docket EEQL{*E&TED

T TO AP T IN
DATE OF HEARING:
TIME OF HEARING:

COMES NOW the Defendant th-iﬁiﬂ' elﬁ;@' | K\_E“ EX_, in proper persona and moves

this court for an Order granting him counsel in the proceeding action.
This motion is made and based upon alf papers and pleadings on file herein and attached

points and authorities.

nol - . .
Dated this_Z~ day of Sm GUBEL . 2028.
Res ‘ mit
A

T & Kellen
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

NRS 34.750 Appointment of Counsel for indigents; pleading supplemental to petition;
response to dismiss.

“If the Court is satisfied that the allegation of indigency is true and the petition is not
dismissed summarily, the Court may appoint counsél to represent the petitioner.”

NRS 171.188 Procedure for appointment of attorney for indigent defendant.

“Any defendant charged with a public offense who is an indigent may, be oral statement to the
District Judge, justice of peace, municipal judge or master, request the appointment of an attorney to
represent him.”

NRS 178.397 Assignment of counsel.

“Every defendant accused of a gross misdemeanor or felony who is financially unable
to obtain counsel is entitled to have counsel assigned to represent him at every stage of the

proceedings from his initial appearance before a magistrate or the court through appeal, unless he

i waives such appointment.”

WHEREFORE, petitioner prays the Court will grant his motion for appointment of counsel to

allow him the assistance that is needed to insure that justice is served, Beeanse Kellee 13
analle do Repeesent Himself In ANY Hearing .

Dated this n day of gﬁ?ﬁfﬂ’!é&ﬁ. 20240,

Res%nﬁtt&l’/\'

Cheistopher 2. Kellr_

e
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Q)\v&‘s\w\m’:@ R Weleq hereby certify, pursuant to NRCP 5(b) that on this b
day of SW\"ZW\%EJE_ 2620, T mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing “

{\oH D M\)gmm Copnve) ;

by depositing it in the High Desert State Prison, Legal Library, First-Class Postage, Fully prepaid,

addressed as follows:

Tleven Q- _-1&\@5_&&__
200 Levad e, 7 Moo
LAs VEGas NV ‘G155 - 11D

DATED: THIS Z"J day of 576‘1’497' emBEeL 2020

l [*]
& /B?Zvﬂ&aﬂ éw

/In Propria Persona
High Desert State Prison
P.0O. Box 650
Indian Springs, Nevada. 89018

-
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RECEIVED
SEP 08 2020

CLERK OF T

8 % R

Cheishibep 2. ellen o0 EILED

Propria Personam SEP 16 2670

Post Office Box 650 [HDSP]
Indian Springs, Nevada 89018 .

Chesstogler. @, Keller

Sible

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

\OOONIO\UI-&WN

VS,

PIAN 1"1 H:

A-19- BOOAS0 -W/
CaseNo.gmrH*’

Slate Of NEVADE DeptNo._}L’L

Delennany Docket

o nt e Nt N N Nt v e et

NOTICE OF MOTION

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that

will come on for hearing before the above-entitled Court on the day of ' , 20

at

the hour of o’clock___. M. In Department —» of said Court,

CC:FILE

DATED: this Z"Jday of SEFh':mgg ,2020.

BY: % W
bl stophee R Keflad £ 61890

/" /n Propria Personam
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DISTRICT COURT

_Cla®lc, _ county, NEVADA

DlRstophee €. Yelleg
_%\m\mh' €4
_3]_9_

Siate of NeVADA
o EeNOANT

case no. P-19-800qS0-W
pepT no. Y IX

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

ORDER

Upon reading the motion of the

requesting.appointment of counsel and good cause appearing;
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that petitioner's motion for appointment
of counsel is granted.

The following named attorney has taken the appointment:

Attorney's Name

Dated this day of P

DISTRICT JUDGE

Justoyhae Kl

IN PROPER PERSON
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Electronically Filed
9/16/2020 12:05 PM
Steven D. Grierson

DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE CC
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA &;ﬁ*‘é ﬂh

s
Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) Case No.: A-19-800950-W
vs.
State of Nevada, Defendant(s) Department 19

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Plainitff's Motion to Appoint Counsel in the above-entitled

matter is set for hearing as follows:

Date: October 22, 2020
Time: Chambers
Location:

Regional Justice Center

200 Lewis Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 83101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court

Case Number: A-19-800950-W
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ASTA

THE COUNTY OF CLARK
CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER,
Plaintiff(s), Dept No: XIX
Vs,
STATE OF NEVADA,
Defendant(s),

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

1. Appellant(s): Christopher R. Keller
2. Judge: William D. Kephart
3. Appellant(s): Christopher R. Keller
Counsel:

Christopher R. Keller #81840

P.O. Box 650

Indian Springs, NV 89070
4. Respondent (s): State of Nevada
Counsel:

Steven B. Wolfson, District Attorney

200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212

A-19-800950-W -1-

Case Number: A-19-800950-W

150

Case No: A-19-800950-W

Electronically Filed
10/21/2020 3:35 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COER&
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5. Appellant(s)'s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: N/A
Permission Granted: N/A

Respondent(s)’s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: Yes
Permission Granted: N/A

6. Has Appellant Ever Been Represented by Appointed Counsel In District Court: No
7. Appellant Represented by Appointed Counsel On Appeal: N/A
8. Appellant Granted Leave to Proceed in Forma Pauperis**: N/A

**Expires 1 year from date filed

Appellant Filed Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis: No
Date Application(s) filed: N/A

9. Date Commenced in District Court: August 26, 2019
10. Brief Description of the Nature of the Action: Civil Writ

Type of Judgment or Order Being Appealed: Civil Writ of Habeas Corpus
11. Previous Appeal: No

Supreme Court Docket Number(s): N/A
12. Child Custody or Visitation: N/A
13. Possibility of Settlement: Unknown

Dated This 21 day of October 2020.

Steven D. Grierson, Clerk of the Court

/s/ Heather Ungermann

Heather Ungermann, Deputy Clerk
200 Lewis Ave

PO Box 551601

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-1601
(702) 671-0512

cc: Christopher R. Keller

A-19-800950-W -2-
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Electronically Filed
11/02/2020 820 AM,

CLERK OF THE COURT

FFCO

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
TALEEN R. PANDUKHT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Petitioner,
CASENO: A-19-800950-W

DEPT NO: XIX

_Vs_
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW, AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: October 1, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

THIS CAUSE having come before the Honorable WILLIAM D. KEPHART, District
Court Judge, on the 1st day of October, 2020, Petitioner being present, not being represented
by counsel, Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County District
Attorney, through MICHAEL DICKERSON, Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having
considered the matter, including the briefs, transcripts, testimony of Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. and
documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and
conclusions of law:.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was
charged by way of Information with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlled Substance
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(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Of Controlled
Substance, Marijuana {Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453.337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 2016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michael Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance”).

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner. On May 4, 2016, Mr.
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (“Second Continuance”).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress. The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson v. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (*Third

Continuance”). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and

/
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Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner.

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seck Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court that it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also

denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied

Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance”). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Calendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance™). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017.

Both Petitioner and the State announced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On March 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attempted to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms, Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to
bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information
was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance {Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
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51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information was subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that sentencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count 1- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in the NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
(10} years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 — a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-cight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5; as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)
months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole ¢ligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
& to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count 8; for a total aggregate sentence of LIFE in the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20) years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Controlled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5, 6and 7.

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.,

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018,

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State filed its Response on January 21, 2020. On February 12, 2020, Petitioner
filed a “Supplemental Response to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus.” Thereafter, on September 16, 2020, Petitioner filed a Motion to Appoint
Counsel.

Petitioner’s Motions came on for evidentiary hearing before this Court on October 1,
2020, with trial counsel Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. called to testify. After the hearing, this Court

made the following findings and conclusions:
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a
2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Officer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Officer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avoid him. Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.

Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s identification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, among which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating directions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in which the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the fact that $20
bills were folded in increments of $100, the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, $5 and $10 bills.

During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcuffs and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Officer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the shots fired. Additionally, Officer Lopez believed

that Petitioner would be a flight risk based upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
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nervousness, the fact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Defendant’s behavior while
Officer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the
driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s
side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the vehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leafy residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, based on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a
concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel
a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and
obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items
of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched
the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gold bags contained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althnether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the
/
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substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight of 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for
Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance was methamphetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams. Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and ¢lastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petitioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

/
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ANALYSIS
I. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s conviction and sentence,

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate:

(a) Good cause for the petitioner’s failure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,
117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).
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Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS
34.724(2)a), see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars

if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for failure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not
obliged to consider them in post-conviction proceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975).

“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably
available at the time of default.” Clem v. State, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)
(emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State
officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128

Nev. 192, 275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.”” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 {1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248, 252,71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual
allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] secking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just

conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not
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sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied” when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the ¢laim was made.”
Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive
claims that could and should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Tllegal
sentence; 2) Ground Two: Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reliability; 3) Ground
Three: No exigency to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed
to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 5} Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6)
Ground Six: Destroyed or lost body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony
of Officer D. Lopez. Each of these claims were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal. Therefore, this Court concludes, pursuant to Evans, these issues were substantively
waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them earlier. This Court further concludes
Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS 34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause or prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, this Court finds that Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and
information needed to raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal, and Petitioner does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of
these issues at that time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether
the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on
the day trial was set to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying
Appellant’s pretrial motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence
pursuant to a search warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls
introduced by the State; and 4) Whether there was cumulative error. This Court concludes that
Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to ignore his procedural defaults because all of the
necessary facts and law were available for a timely appeal and he has not alleged an
impediment external to the defense prevented raising these claims at the appropriate time.

Therefore, these additional substantive claims arc waived.
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II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL DO
NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove
he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063—64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865
P.2d at 323, Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for
counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have
been different. 466 U.S. at 68788, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[T]here is no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant
makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was
ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel
does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev, 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, §, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

recasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711
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(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A rcasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his ineffective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”
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allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[|Petitioner| must allege specific facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not
be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 {2002); see also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland

does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosccution expert an cqual and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt

about the State’s theory for a jury to convict. Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578

F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992).

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United

States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-
prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114
(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted

issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or burying good arguments. .. in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess

reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every
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‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argues that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineffective for the following reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not appealing the suppression hearing issues; 3) for not
using another investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;
4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing. This Court finds that Petitioner has
failed to demonstrate that trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard, as
trial counsel not only filed a Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he
conducted an evidentiary hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Daniel Lopez testified.
Exhibits were presented as well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to
Suppress. Therefore, this Court finds that trial counsel appropriately raised the suppression
issues and properly conducted the evidentiary hearing. Further, Petitioner fails to show how,
but for counsel’s errors, the outcome of the suppression proceedings would have been
different. As such, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s first claim of ineffective assistance
does not entitle Petitioner to relief.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel was ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. This Court finds that this claim likewise fails to demonstrate how counsel’s
performance fell below a reasonable standard, as Appellate counsel did raise scveral
meritorious issues on appeal, including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence

from Petitioner’s residence. The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did
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not abuse its discretion by denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his

condo through a search warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides

no evidence and only makes bare and naked allegations that he was prejudiced. Such bare and
naked allegations are not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at
225. This Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had
a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114,
There is a strong presumption that appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell
within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560
(citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and

naked allegations, this Court concludes he cannot overcome the strong presumption of
counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief is not warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502,
686 P.2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel is expected to conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,

91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,

472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations
or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.

Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,

104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more
favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and investigation is both encouraged and

common practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators

are “subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
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case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate
investigations led to that conclusion.

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner cannot show trial counsel fell below a
reasonable standard for not using another investigator simply because Petitioner was
apparently dissatisfied with this one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular “relationship”

with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617 (1983). There is no

requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel is reasonably
effective in his representation. See id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is not entitled to a
particular relationship with his attorney’s investigator, who is either also court appointed or
who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. Therefore, this
Court concludes that the choice of investigator was a reasonable decision to make and does
not amount to deficient representation under Strickland. Further, this Court finds that
Petitioner fails to demonstrate how the employment of a different investigator would have
benefitted the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner is
not entitled to relief.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. This Court finds that there is no requirement for a
specific number of visits every case necessitates, nor is that a basis for ineffective assistance
of counsel. Further, Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel
also communicates with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars.

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best
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criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.” Strickland,
466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner has failed
to demonstrate trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard. Further, this
Court finds that Petitioner fails to demonstrate how more jail visits would have changed the
outcome at trial. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this
claim,

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testify that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “[s]trategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;
see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
these alleged witnesses. This Court finds that Petitioner fails to establish if trial counsel even
had sufficient information to locate these unnamed witnesses. Moreover, a review of the record
demonstrates that trial counsel was, in fact, not given timely information about the witness
Petitioner describes as having to wait so long she left the trial. This witness, a woman named
Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence a few times, was discussed on the record on the

fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what ha%pened here. While you were probably walkin
down the hallway to come in, I was on the phone with the witness that you sai
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silva, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- 1 said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
p she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

/
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Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court indicated it would allow

her to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's going to be offering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I actually just learned of her
I;otential as a witness gesterday evening from an e-mail, which I received.

HE COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And --
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
previously that we discussed before we started the trial?
MR. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, and strategic
decisions such as which witnesses to call or not call are virtually unchallengeable. As such,
this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient performance and Petitioner’s
claim therefore fails.

Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call
witnesses during sentencing hearings unless they are convicted of First Degree Murder. NRS
176.015; NRS 175.552. Therefore, this Court finds that counsel cannot be deemed ineffective
for failing to call family and witnesses to speak on his behalf at his sentencing, as Petitioner
was not entitled to this under Nevada law.

Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden

of proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
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Conviction was affirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is

within the discretion of trial counsel and will not be questioned unless it was a plainly

unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson
v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for
the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When defense counsel does not have a solid case, the best
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.
Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Thus, this Court finds that

neither the State nor trial counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was
fully covered during the direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript

of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 44-147. Consequently, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim

fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process. However,
this Court finds that Petitioner does not properly allege that trial counsel was aware of any
mental health or medication issues. Petitioner does not even specify exactly what mental
health history or medications he is referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue.
As such, this Court finds Petitioner’s argument amounts to a bare and naked allegation under
Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the record that demonstrate evidence
of insanity or incompetence. Further, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to argue how any
mental health or medication issues would have ultimately changed the outcome of the instant
case. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.
III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE CLAIM

FOR HABEAS RELIEF

The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

Further, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in evaluating a claim
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of cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity and character of
the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d
845, 855 (2000).

As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totality of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 344.29 grams of
methamphetaming, 33.92 grams of heroin, .537 grams of cocaing, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The quantity of methamphetamine
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the discovery of 1-inch by 1l-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Further, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front of his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding of probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.
Order of Affirmance at page 5.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error

Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guilt is close, the quantity
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged” in determining
cumulative error). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court
AFFIRMED.

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, this Court finds that Petitioner
has failed to establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable
likelihood of a better outcome at trial. This Court further finds that, even if Petitioner had
made such a showing, he has failed to show that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors
was so prejudicial as to undermine this Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case.
Because the issue of guilt was not close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine
confidence in the outcome of his case, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim of
cumulative error is without merit.

/
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, Petitioner Christopher Keller’s Pro Per

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) shall be, and is, DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and is,

DENIED as Defendant is not entitled to counsel at this point.

DATED this day of October, 2020.
Dated this 2nd day of November, 2020
DISTRICT JUDGE
12A EB1 1B70 A32A

Sy o B WOLESON William D. Kephart
ar. oun 1strict ttorney Py
Nevada Bar%OOl 565 District Court Judge

for

Chicf Deputy Dt
Nevada Bar #00

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this day of

, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

cg/L2

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER
1200 PRISON ROAD

LOVELOCK, NV, 89419

BY

C. Garcia
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
VS, DEPT. NO. Department 19

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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Electronically Filed
11/5/2020 12:16 PM
Steven D. Grierson

NEFF
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CHRISTOPHER KELLER,
Case No: A-19-800950-W
Petitioner, Dept No: XX
vs.
STATE OF NEVADA,
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF FACT,
Respondent, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on November 2, 2020, the court entered a decision or order in this
matter, a true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, you
must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice is

mailed to you. This notice was mailed on November 5, 2020.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE COURT

/s/ Amanda Hampton
Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE / MAILING

I hereby certify that on this 5 day of November 2020, T served a copy of this Notice of Entry on the
following:

M By e-mail:
Clark County District Attorney’s Office
Anorney General’s Office — Appellate Division-

M The United States mail addressed as follows:
Christopher Keller # 81840
P.O. Box 650
Indian Springs, NV 89070

/s/ Amanda Hampton
Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk

1

Case Number: A-19-800950-W
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Electronically Filed
11/02/2020 820 AM,

CLERK OF THE COURT

FFCO

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
TALEEN R. PANDUKHT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Petitioner,
CASENO: A-19-800950-W

DEPT NO: XIX

_Vs_
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW, AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: October 1, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

THIS CAUSE having come before the Honorable WILLIAM D. KEPHART, District
Court Judge, on the 1st day of October, 2020, Petitioner being present, not being represented
by counsel, Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County District
Attorney, through MICHAEL DICKERSON, Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having
considered the matter, including the briefs, transcripts, testimony of Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. and
documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and
conclusions of law:.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was
charged by way of Information with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlled Substance
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(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Of Controlled
Substance, Marijuana {Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453.337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 2016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michael Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance”).

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner. On May 4, 2016, Mr.
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (“Second Continuance”).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress. The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson v. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (*Third

Continuance”). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and

/
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Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner.

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seck Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court that it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also

denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied

Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance”). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Calendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance™). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017.

Both Petitioner and the State announced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On March 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attempted to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms, Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to
bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information
was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance {Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
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51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information was subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that sentencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count 1- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in the NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
(10} years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 — a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-cight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5; as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)
months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole ¢ligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
& to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count 8; for a total aggregate sentence of LIFE in the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20) years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Controlled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5, 6and 7.

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.,

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018,

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State filed its Response on January 21, 2020. On February 12, 2020, Petitioner
filed a “Supplemental Response to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus.” Thereafter, on September 16, 2020, Petitioner filed a Motion to Appoint
Counsel.

Petitioner’s Motions came on for evidentiary hearing before this Court on October 1,
2020, with trial counsel Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. called to testify. After the hearing, this Court

made the following findings and conclusions:
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a
2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Officer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Officer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avoid him. Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.

Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s identification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, among which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating directions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in which the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the fact that $20
bills were folded in increments of $100, the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, $5 and $10 bills.

During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcuffs and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Officer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the shots fired. Additionally, Officer Lopez believed

that Petitioner would be a flight risk based upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
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nervousness, the fact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Defendant’s behavior while
Officer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the
driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s
side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the vehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leafy residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, based on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a
concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel
a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and
obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items
of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched
the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gold bags contained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althnether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the
/
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substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight of 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for
Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance was methamphetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams. Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and ¢lastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petitioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

/
/
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ANALYSIS
I. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s conviction and sentence,

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate:

(a) Good cause for the petitioner’s failure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,
117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

/
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Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS
34.724(2)a), see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars

if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for failure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not
obliged to consider them in post-conviction proceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975).

“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably
available at the time of default.” Clem v. State, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)
(emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State
officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128

Nev. 192, 275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.”” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 {1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248, 252,71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual
allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] secking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just

conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not

10
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sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied” when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the ¢laim was made.”
Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive
claims that could and should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Tllegal
sentence; 2) Ground Two: Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reliability; 3) Ground
Three: No exigency to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed
to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 5} Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6)
Ground Six: Destroyed or lost body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony
of Officer D. Lopez. Each of these claims were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal. Therefore, this Court concludes, pursuant to Evans, these issues were substantively
waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them earlier. This Court further concludes
Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS 34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause or prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, this Court finds that Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and
information needed to raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal, and Petitioner does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of
these issues at that time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether
the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on
the day trial was set to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying
Appellant’s pretrial motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence
pursuant to a search warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls
introduced by the State; and 4) Whether there was cumulative error. This Court concludes that
Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to ignore his procedural defaults because all of the
necessary facts and law were available for a timely appeal and he has not alleged an
impediment external to the defense prevented raising these claims at the appropriate time.

Therefore, these additional substantive claims arc waived.
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II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL DO
NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove
he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063—64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865
P.2d at 323, Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for
counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have
been different. 466 U.S. at 68788, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[T]here is no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant
makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was
ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel
does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev, 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, §, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

recasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711
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(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A rcasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his ineffective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”
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allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[|Petitioner| must allege specific facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not
be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 {2002); see also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland

does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosccution expert an cqual and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt

about the State’s theory for a jury to convict. Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578

F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992).

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United

States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-
prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114
(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted

issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or burying good arguments. .. in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess

reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every
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‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argues that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineffective for the following reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not appealing the suppression hearing issues; 3) for not
using another investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;
4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing. This Court finds that Petitioner has
failed to demonstrate that trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard, as
trial counsel not only filed a Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he
conducted an evidentiary hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Daniel Lopez testified.
Exhibits were presented as well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to
Suppress. Therefore, this Court finds that trial counsel appropriately raised the suppression
issues and properly conducted the evidentiary hearing. Further, Petitioner fails to show how,
but for counsel’s errors, the outcome of the suppression proceedings would have been
different. As such, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s first claim of ineffective assistance
does not entitle Petitioner to relief.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel was ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. This Court finds that this claim likewise fails to demonstrate how counsel’s
performance fell below a reasonable standard, as Appellate counsel did raise scveral
meritorious issues on appeal, including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence

from Petitioner’s residence. The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did
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not abuse its discretion by denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his

condo through a search warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides

no evidence and only makes bare and naked allegations that he was prejudiced. Such bare and
naked allegations are not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at
225. This Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had
a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114,
There is a strong presumption that appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell
within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560
(citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and

naked allegations, this Court concludes he cannot overcome the strong presumption of
counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief is not warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502,
686 P.2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel is expected to conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,

91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,

472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations
or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.

Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,

104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more
favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and investigation is both encouraged and

common practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators

are “subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
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case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate
investigations led to that conclusion.

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner cannot show trial counsel fell below a
reasonable standard for not using another investigator simply because Petitioner was
apparently dissatisfied with this one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular “relationship”

with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617 (1983). There is no

requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel is reasonably
effective in his representation. See id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is not entitled to a
particular relationship with his attorney’s investigator, who is either also court appointed or
who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. Therefore, this
Court concludes that the choice of investigator was a reasonable decision to make and does
not amount to deficient representation under Strickland. Further, this Court finds that
Petitioner fails to demonstrate how the employment of a different investigator would have
benefitted the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner is
not entitled to relief.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. This Court finds that there is no requirement for a
specific number of visits every case necessitates, nor is that a basis for ineffective assistance
of counsel. Further, Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel
also communicates with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars.

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best
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criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.” Strickland,
466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner has failed
to demonstrate trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard. Further, this
Court finds that Petitioner fails to demonstrate how more jail visits would have changed the
outcome at trial. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner is not entitled to relief on this
claim,

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testify that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “[s]trategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;
see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
these alleged witnesses. This Court finds that Petitioner fails to establish if trial counsel even
had sufficient information to locate these unnamed witnesses. Moreover, a review of the record
demonstrates that trial counsel was, in fact, not given timely information about the witness
Petitioner describes as having to wait so long she left the trial. This witness, a woman named
Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence a few times, was discussed on the record on the

fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what ha%pened here. While you were probably walkin
down the hallway to come in, I was on the phone with the witness that you sai
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silva, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- 1 said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
p she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

/
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Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court indicated it would allow

her to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's going to be offering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I actually just learned of her
I;otential as a witness gesterday evening from an e-mail, which I received.

HE COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And --
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
previously that we discussed before we started the trial?
MR. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, and strategic
decisions such as which witnesses to call or not call are virtually unchallengeable. As such,
this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient performance and Petitioner’s
claim therefore fails.

Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call
witnesses during sentencing hearings unless they are convicted of First Degree Murder. NRS
176.015; NRS 175.552. Therefore, this Court finds that counsel cannot be deemed ineffective
for failing to call family and witnesses to speak on his behalf at his sentencing, as Petitioner
was not entitled to this under Nevada law.

Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden

of proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
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Conviction was affirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is

within the discretion of trial counsel and will not be questioned unless it was a plainly

unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson
v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for
the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When defense counsel does not have a solid case, the best
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.
Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Thus, this Court finds that

neither the State nor trial counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was
fully covered during the direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript

of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 44-147. Consequently, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim

fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process. However,
this Court finds that Petitioner does not properly allege that trial counsel was aware of any
mental health or medication issues. Petitioner does not even specify exactly what mental
health history or medications he is referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue.
As such, this Court finds Petitioner’s argument amounts to a bare and naked allegation under
Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the record that demonstrate evidence
of insanity or incompetence. Further, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to argue how any
mental health or medication issues would have ultimately changed the outcome of the instant
case. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.
III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE CLAIM

FOR HABEAS RELIEF

The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

Further, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in evaluating a claim
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of cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity and character of
the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d
845, 855 (2000).

As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totality of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 344.29 grams of
methamphetaming, 33.92 grams of heroin, .537 grams of cocaing, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The quantity of methamphetamine
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the discovery of 1-inch by 1l-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Further, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front of his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding of probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.
Order of Affirmance at page 5.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error

Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guilt is close, the quantity
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged” in determining
cumulative error). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court
AFFIRMED.

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, this Court finds that Petitioner
has failed to establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable
likelihood of a better outcome at trial. This Court further finds that, even if Petitioner had
made such a showing, he has failed to show that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors
was so prejudicial as to undermine this Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case.
Because the issue of guilt was not close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine
confidence in the outcome of his case, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim of
cumulative error is without merit.

/
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, Petitioner Christopher Keller’s Pro Per

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) shall be, and is, DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and is,

DENIED as Defendant is not entitled to counsel at this point.

DATED this day of October, 2020.
Dated this 2nd day of November, 2020
DISTRICT JUDGE
12A EB1 1B70 A32A

Sy o B WOLESON William D. Kephart
ar. oun 1strict ttorney Py
Nevada Bar%OOl 565 District Court Judge

for

Chicf Deputy Dt
Nevada Bar #00

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this day of

, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

cg/L2

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER
1200 PRISON ROAD

LOVELOCK, NV, 89419

BY

C. Garcia
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
VS, DEPT. NO. Department 19

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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A-19-800950-W

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Writ of Habeas Corpus COURT MINUTES December 09, 2019

A-19-800950-W Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s)
VS.
State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

December 09, 2019 8:30 AM Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus

HEARD BY: Kephart, William D. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 16B
COURT CLERK: Tia Everett

RECORDER: Christine Erickson

REPORTER:

PARTIES
PRESENT: Zadrowski, Bernard B. Attorney

JOURNAL ENTRIES
- Court noted Defendant not present and in custody with the Nevada Department of Corrections.
Further, Court stated a written opposition has not been filed. Mr. Zadrowski advised the State is
requesting 45 days to file a written response. COURT ORDERED, State's Response shall be due on or
before 1/22/2020; Defendant's Reply shall be due on or before 2/26/2020 and matter CONTINUED.
NDC

CONTINUED TO: 3/11/2020 8:30 AM

CLERK'S NOTE: The above minute order has been distributed to:
CHRISTOPHER KELLER # 81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER

1200 PRISON RD
LOVELOCK, NV 89419
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A-19-800950-W

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Writ of Habeas Corpus COURT MINUTES March 11, 2020
A-19-800950-W Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s)
VS.

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

March 11, 2020 8:30 AM Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus

HEARD BY: Kephart, William D. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 16B
COURT CLERK: Tia Everett

RECORDER: Christine Erickson

REPORTER:

PARTIES
PRESENT: Brooks, Parker Attorney

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Court noted Defendant not present and in custody with the Nevada Department of Corrections.
Further, Court noted Defendant has made a number of claims and COURT ORDERED, as to claims 1
- 7 are substantive claims which should have been raised on direct appeal and have therefore been
those claims have been waived. FURTHER ORDERED, matter SET for Evidentiary Hearing as to 3, 4,
5, 7 & 8 regarding ineffective of counsel as follows;

3 - counsel failing to use a different investigator based on his parents

4 - counsel failing to visit while preparing

5 - failure to subpoena and/or call certain witnesses regarding living arrangements he had
7 - failure to ask for testimony of canine handlers records

8 - failure to relay Defendant's mental health history and the fact Defendant was on and off
medication.

Court noted as to claims 1, 2 & 6 the Court will not need to hear any information regarding these
claims.

NDC

PRINT DATE: 11/17/2020 Page?2 of 4 Minutes Date:  December 09, 2019

200



A-19-800950-W

4/23/2020 8:30 AM EVIDENTIARY HEARING
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A-19-800950-W

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Writ of Habeas Corpus COURT MINUTES October 01, 2020

A-19-800950-W Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s)
VS.
State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

October 01, 2020 8:30 AM All Pending Motions
HEARD BY: Kephart, William D. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 16B
COURT CLERK: Tia Everett

RECORDER: Christine Erickson

REPORTER:
PARTIES
PRESENT: Dickerson, Michael Attorney
Keller, Christopher R Plaintiff
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO APPOINT COUNSEL:

COURT ORDERED, Motion DENIED as Defendant is not entitled to counsel at this point.

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS ... EVIDENTIARY HEARING

Court reviewed Defendant's claims for the record. Kenneth Frizzell sworn and testified. Court
FINDS, Defendant's claims 1 - 7 were claims which could have been raised on direct appeal and
therefore WAIVED; and Defendant has failed to establish how counsel's representations fell below a
reasonable standard as well as but for counsel's errors how the outcome would have been different.
COURT ORDERED, Petition DENIED.

NDC
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Certification of Copy and
Transmittal of Record

State of Nevada SS
County of Clark } .

Pursuant to the Supreme Court order dated November 5, 2020, I, Steven D. Grierson, the Clerk of the
Court of the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, State of Nevada, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true, full and correct copy of the complete trial court record for the case referenced below.
The record comprises one volume with pages numbered 1 through 202.

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER,
Plaintiff(s), Case No: A-19-800950-W
Dept. No: XIX
Vs.
STATE OF NEVADA,
Defendant(s),

now on file and of record in this office.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto
Set my hand and Affixed the seal of the
Court at my office, Las Vegas, Nevada

This 17 day of November 2020.

Steven D. Grierson, Clerk of the Court

AW\»W

Heather Ungermann, Deputy Clerk






